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THE CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA

18747 CLARKDALE AVENUE, ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA 90701
Telephone 562 / 865-6262 .
FAX 562 / 865-6240

“Sewvice Bulids Tomorrow's Progress”

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Artesia
Artesia, California -

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Artesia (City), California, as of June
30, 2016 and for the year then ended, is submitted herewith. To the best of our knowledge and
belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed
to present fairly the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the various funds of
the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City’s
financial activities have been included.

Completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report is based upon a
comprehensive framework of internal controls that is established for this purpose. The costs of
internal control should not exceed the anticipated benefits. The objective of internal controls is to
provide reasonable, rather that absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any
material misstatements.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) interprets the financial reports by analyzing
trends and by explaining changes, fluctuations, and variations in the financial data. In addition, the
MD&A is intended to disclose any known significant events or decisions that affect the financial
condition of the City. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in
conjunction with it.

Independent Audit. City policy requires that its financial statements be audited by a certified
public accountant. Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP, Certified Public Accountants and Consultants,
have issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year
ended on June 30, 2016. The auditor’s report on the basic financial statements and required
supplementary information is included in the financial section of this report.

Profile of the City of Artesia

Form of government

The City is a general law city, incorporated in 1959. The City Council is composed of five
members elected biannually at large to serve four-year overlapping terms. The Mayor, selected by
the Council, is its presiding officer and serves a one-year term. In the Mayor’s absence the Mayor
Pro Tem assumes the responsibilities of the Mayor’s office.



The City has a Council/Manager form of government. The City Manager is appointed by the City
Council to manage the affairs of the City and to implement policies established by the Council.
The City Manager oversees all operations of the City including Community Development, Public
Safety, Public Infrastructure Development and Maintenance, Parks and Recreational Services,
Economic Development, and Administrative Services.

Location and Nature of the City

Much of the land located within the City before the 1950s was dedicated to farm, orchard, or
grazing uses. In 1955, the Bradley-Burns Act was passed, which provided a one per cent sales tax
rebate for cities, to be distributed by the state. In 1957, the community roads of Pioneer Boulevard,
South Street, and Artesia Boulevard were paved, two-lane roads, which brought the roads to
minimal standard. The City of Artesia incorporated on May 29, 1959 with the motto “Service
Builds Tomorrow’s Progress.”

Today, the City is a historical community with a well-developed mix of commercial development
(restaurant and retail) and suburban residential parcels located nineteen miles southeast of
downtown Los Angeles and 10 miles northeast of Long Beach. The city encompasses an area of
approximately 1.6 square miles and has parcels and areas that can be developed and redeveloped.
There are three major retail areas, and one industrial area.

Residential Population and Service Population

The current permanent year-round resident population is about 17,000, however, Artesia has an
extensive employment base for its geographical size. As a result, the industrial, office, and retail
sectors increase the number of day residents, defined as those who reside in Artesia during business
hours. Artesia is also the location of a regional-sized park which, on any given day, may be the
site of recreation or community services programming that will further increase the day resident
population.

Finally, Artesia is the location of a distinctive international shopping district which attracts
shoppers from throughout Southern California; because these shoppers may have traveled an hour
or two get here, they tend to come for the entire day and evening, and bring a family or group with
them, further increasing the day resident population. Because Artesia’s seasonal and day resident
population increases demand for additional municipal services such as public safety, transportation
services, pedestrian infrastructure such as sidewalks, streetlights, wayfinding signage, public
restrooms, parks and recreation services, public open space, parking facilities, parking
enforcement, and code enforcement, the City of Artesia generally is sizing its municipal services
for a community of 25,000. Increases in the permanent year-round population, the seasonal
population, and the day resident population are projected to increase in the coming years.

The City is included in the Los Angeles-Long Beach Metropolitan Statistical Area. The following
table summarizes the civilian labor force, employment and unemployment, and employment rate
in the County and the City for calendar year 2011 through October, 2015:




LOS ANGELES COUNTY AND CITY OF ARTESIA STATISTICAL AREA
Civilian Labor Force, Unemployment and Unemployment Rate
Annual Averages (000's)®

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
County City County City County City County City County City
Civilian Labor Force 4,915 7.42 4,967 7.53 5,004 7.64 5,002 7.70 5,055  7.83

Employment 4,378 6.54 4,483 7.10 4,591 7.27 4,671 7.40 4,790  7.59
Unemployment 537 0.48 485 0.43 413 0.37 331 0.30 265 0.24

Unemployment Rate  10.90% 6.46% 9.80% 5.74% 830% 4.82% 6.60% 3.84% 530% 3.03%
1) Not scasonally adjusted

Unemployment Rate: Artesia versus LA County
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Budgeting

The City observes an annual budget cycle and produces an annual budget. The City Council is
required to adopt a final budget by June 30™ of each fiscal year. The annual budget serves as the
foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by fund, program
(e.g., public safety), and activity (e.g. law enforcement). Department managers may transfer
resources within each program as needed. The City Manager may appropriate resources up to
$7,500 from unbudgeted funds and up to $30,154.27 from budgeted funds. Expenditures above
these thresholds require approval from the City Council.

The City budget appropriations for a full range of services including sheriff (via contract with the
Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Department); construction and maintenance of arterial roads, streets
and infrastructure; lighting and landscaping infrastructure; storm drains; parks and recreational
services; public transportation; planning and economic development; housing; and recycling
collection services (via contract).




Entities included in the Financial Reports

This report includes all the funds of the City. In accordance with the reporting entity definition of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the City has included the Artesia Parking
Authority and the Artesia Housing Authority in the financial report. The resources and activities
of the Successor Agency to the City of Artesia Redevelopment Agency are reported in a separate
Private-Purpose Trust Fund, which is also included in these financial statements.

Several state and county agencies and school districts provide services to the City, but do not meet
the established criteria for inclusion, and accordingly are excluded from this report.

Economic Condition Outlook

The prospects for the future of the City are good. The City has taken decisive steps to improve its
reserve levels, establish a prudent, conservative, and balanced budgeting system, and reset its
policies and resources to encourage smart growth. The development community is taking notice,
and the result is that the City is seeing strong interest in Artesia from both the investment and
development communities. Artesia actively secks to position itself as “the most business friendly
city in Southern California.”

Long-term financial planning and, major initiatives

During Fiscal Year 2015/2016, a Resolution was adopted approving General Fund balance
allocations. These allocations significantly increased the City’s reserve levels over prior years.
Eight categories were identified and unassigned fund balances were committed:

Contingency Reserve of $123,000

Accrued Leave Reserve of $75,000

General Plan Update Reserve of $65,000

Facility Repairs and Improvements Reserve of $56,726
Vehicle/Equipment Replacement Reserve of $30,500
Measure M Reserve of $100,0010

Organizational Development $121,000

e Preliminary Planning Projects $180,000

e © e e e o ©

Total reserves, inclusive of Contingency Dedicated funds of $2,001,250, Operational Reserves,
and Committed Fund Balances, for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 total $5,705,366, which represents a
7% increase over the previous year. The City Council, as a part of its adoption of the Fiscal Year
2015/16 Budget, committed $123,000 to the Contingency Reserve. The Contingency Reserve
Fund Balance requires City Council approval to allocate funds from this reserve. Primary uses are
for unforeseen expenditures such as emergency repairs of damage to facilities of infrastructure or
other acts-of-God calamities. The other categories of Committed Fund Balance cover
unanticipated operational and maintenance issues that arise during the budget year and require a
simple majority vote by City Council.



The City of Artesia received an unmodified opinion for the audit of the year ending June 30, 2016.
This means that the City’s financial records and statements are fairly and appropriately presented,
and in accordance with General Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). An unmodified opinion
is the best possible audit outcome.

The Council adopted a Priorities List at midyear which included a plan to increase contingency
reserves for the 2015/2016 Budget. The Priorities List also outline submitting a balanced budget
without reducing funding levels, continuing the new budget format with full cost allocation and
reducing the need for a larger cash flow balance sitting idle.

As part of the Priorities List approved by the City Council, planning for long term financial
stability is also addressed. One priority is to increase revenues by developing an economic
development plan that will increase revenues to pay for increased service levels and improve
quality of life for City residents, visitors, and merchants. An equally important priority, the City
Management Team, will implement an organizational development plan to correct the
misalignment of current staff allocation with the staffing allocation required to meet the Council
and community needs and goals, provide leadership development, succession planning, and
skills/performance management. The key to the long term success of financial planning and major
initiatives is the professionalism and proficiency of the City’s management team as the key
problem solvers, innovators, and leader of the City. Management must be appropriately trained,
encouraged, compensated, and held accountable.

The Capital Improvement Plan the City of Artesia set in motion as a written project list to address
improvements of infrastructure by identifying a priority level of execution for each project ensures
that scarce resources are used as prudently and responsible as possible. Priority levels for financial
planning of the Capital Improvement Plan consider, in order of importance, safety, revenue
generation, quality of life amenities, and maintenance.

As part of the Capital Improvement Plan, the City Council approved a funding agreement, utilizing
a portion of bond proceeds, for the Historical District Recreation Area which is near the Pioneer
Boulevard Downtown Revitalization project. The project improvements improve the MTA right
of way between 183" and 187™ Street, a half a mile length, by providing more access to
recreational opportunities and facilities through the creation of a bike and pedestrian path, security
lighting, and amenities such as benches, drinking fountains, and water efficient landscaping.

As mentioned earlier, developing a plan to increase revenues and provide for quality of life has
resulted in new programs to benefit the commercial activities in the City of Artesia. The City will
assist businesses through a pilot program called Commercial Building Rehabilitation Program by
offering financial incentives to business owners/merchants. Support will be offered for
improvements in four elements: architectural design services, sign replacement loan rebates,
fagades improvements loan rebates, and general property improvement loan rebates. The objective
is to improve the physical appearance of commercial building fagades which provide pleasant and
exciting family oriented shopping districts.

In the same vein, the City will promote new restaurant development in the City to encourage the
type, level and quality of restaurants that will be beneficial to the City and its residents. All new




restaurants require the developer to pay for planning/building review and permit fees. Under this
program, the City would rebate a portion of the fees collected over a timeframe, 1-5 years, if the
restaurant generates enough sales tax and business tax revenue to offset the rebated amount within
the timeframe. The program’s focus is on national chains, sit-down/dine-in restaurants, and
includes those that create jobs for Artesia residents and produce sales taxes which support City
services.

The City economy has always relied on sales tax as a significant revenue source to support
municipal governmental services. A vibrant sector is the Restaurant and Hotel major business
group located in the City. The City has made significant strides in its economic development
outreach to existing and out of area investors. Additionally, the City committed to creating an
attractive regulatory environment that incentivizes smart growth and economic development.
Examples are mixed-use developments, projects with higher densities, and flexibility in permitting
off-site parking. The City has been nominated as a most business-friendly city in Los Angeles
County for three years. In addition to the preceding examples, the City has expedited entitlements
and plan check processes for all priority projects that promote retail and restaurant uses. There is
City commitment to provide transparent, fair and cost-effective rules for development. Projects
that come before the City are evaluated for the right fees and tax incentive programs that capture
franchise brand restaurants. Finally, the City offers an exterior fagade improvement program for
businesses within the Downtown Corridor.

The City’s downtown commercial corridor area on Pioneer Boulevard, between 183 Street and
188" Street, will drive more foot traffic by enhancing shopping and dining experiences for patrons
through good urban planning and modernization of the streets features. This section of the
boulevard contains the most amenities and it is expected to contribute the most to the community’s
vision of economic stability. An improvement is taking shape for the public infrastructure needed
to support the goal of achieving a complementary mix of commercial retail, office and residential
use, which will expand economic vibrancy and livability in the City’s core commercial area.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of the City Council
City of Artesia, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Artesia, California as of and
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Artesia, California, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Emphasis of Matter
Change in Accounting Principles

As discussed in note 1 of the notes to the basic financial statements effective July 1, 2015, the City adopted the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement
and Application and Statement No. 73, Accounting and Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets not within the
Scope of GASB 68 and Amendments to GASB 67 and 68. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s Discussion
and Analysis, budgetary comparison schedules for the General and major special revenue funds, Schedule of
Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, Schedule of Pension Contributions, and Schedule of
Funding Progress for Retiree Health Plan to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Artesia's basic financial statements. The introductory section, governmental and enterprise
combining and individual non-major fund information, internal service, major capital project fund budgetary
comparison schedule, major debt service fund budgetary comparison schedule and fiduciary fund financial
statements and schedules, and the statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The governmental combining and individual non-major fund information, major capital project fund budgetary
comparison schedule, and fiduciary fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the governmental combining and
individual non-major fund information, major capital project fund budgetary comparison schedule, and fiduciary
fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 24, 2018, on
our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

“#/M, K“? v,&.‘éw

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP
Culver City, California
September 24, 2018
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Artesia, we offer readers of the City of Artesia’s financial statements this

narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Artesia for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2016.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Artesia exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $30,848,202 (net position). The Governmental
Activities have unrestricted net position of $4,763,585, which may be used to meet the government's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Business-type Activities have unrestricted net position of
$56,125.

» The City’s net position for governmental activities increased by $2,801,421 over the prior fiscal year.
e The City’s net position for business-type activities increased by $21,918 over the prior fiscal year.

e The total cost of all City activities was $10,373,094 for the current fiscal year. Net cost of all activities
was $6,522,180.

e As of June 30, 2016, the City of Artesia’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $12,331,892, an increase of $772,442 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 73% of this
amount is committed or assigned to indicate that it is not available because it has set aside for projects
or specific purposes. Another 21% is legally restricted by resolution or 3t party covenants.

e As of June 30, 2016, the unassigned fund balance for all governmental funds was $676,056.
Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Artesia’s basic financial
statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City of Artesia’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Artesia’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City of Artesia is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities and changes in net position presents information showing how the government's net
position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned, but unused, vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Artesia that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges. The
governmental activities of the City of Artesia include general government, public safety, parks and recreation,
public works and community development.
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The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary government)
but also the blending of the legally separate Artesia Housing Authority and Artesia Parking Authority for
which the City is financially accountable. This component unit are therefore included as an integral part of the
primary government.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Artesia, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds
and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The City of Artesia maintains twenty-three individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the funds below, which are considered to be major funds:

e General Fund
e Capital Projects Fund

Major funds are governmental or enterprise funds whose revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets or liabilities
are at least 10% of corresponding totals for all governmental or enterprise funds and at least 5% of the
corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

Data from the non-major governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual
fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

The City of Artesia adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison
schedule has been provided for the General Fund and Capital Projects Fund to demonstrate compliance with
these adopted budgets.

Proprietary funds. The City of Artesia has one proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City’s
enterprise fund accounts for the residential refuse operations. Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. All proprietary funds are
considered to be major funds of the City.
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Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City of Artesia’s own programs. The accounting used
for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. Funds of the George Nelson Memorial and
Senior Citizens and various other small projects are held as fiduciary funds. The Successor Agency to the
Artesia Redevelopment Agency (ASA) is a public entity created by AB X1 26 (2011) and the City of Artesia
effective February 1, 2012 to wind down the affairs of the former Artesia Redevelopment Agency.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. As
of June 30, 2016, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $30,848,202.

By far the largest portion of the City of Artesia’s net position, $23,993,612 represents resources invested in
capital assets. Capital assets provide services to citizens and are not available for future spending. Resources
needed to repay the related debt outstanding must be provided from other sources because the capital assets
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of net position (6.6%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how it may be used, and therefore $2,034,880 may not be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

The City’s net position for government-wide statements increased by $2,823,339, or 10% during the fiscal year
as a result of revenues exceeding expenditures during this fiscal year. The total cost of all City activities was
$10,373,094. Net cost of all activities was $6,522,180. Both revenue increases and expense decreases are
discussed in more detail in the following report sections.

Governmental Activities
This analysis focuses on the net position and changes in net position of the City’s governmental activities

which are presented in the government-wide financial statements.

Governmental Activities Net Position

2016 2015
Current and other assets $ 13,403,910 $ 13,189,056
Capital assets 24,091,518 21,361,123
Total assets 37,495,428 34,550,179
Deferred outflows of resources 110,672 122,602
Long-term liabilities outstanding 4,772,606 4,850,414
Other liabilities 1,032,529 1,050,748
Total liabilities 5,805,135 5,901,162
Deferred inflows of resources 1,008,888 780,963
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 23,993,612 21,212,739
Restricted 2,034,880 6,151,937
Unrestricted 4,763,585 625,980
Total net position $ 30,792,077 $ 27,990,656

The net position of the governmental activities represents 99% of the City’s total net position. Restricted net
assets include external restrictions relating to public safety, street projects, housing and other purposes.
Restricted net position decreased by $4,117,057 or 67 %.
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City of Artesia’s net position by $2,801,421.
Key elements of this increase are as follows:

Governmental Activities Change in Net Position

2016 2015
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 1,688,726 § 1,153,053
Operating grants and contributions 1,763,400 2,077,854
Capital grants and contributions 183,881
General revenues:
Property taxes 1,778,796 1,698,157
Transient occupancy taxes 553,188 535,124
Sales taxes 3,038,340 3,096,626
Franchise taxes 2,696,612 407,926
Business license taxes 518,569 479,678
Other taxes 192,493 163,526
Vehicle license fee collection in excess 6,798 7,216
Use of money and property 548,037 436,094
Other 12,686 70,907
Total revenues 12,797,645 10,310,042
Expenses
General government 2,458,793 1,657,600
Public safety 3,376,566 3,211,801
Parks and recreation 1,258,541 1,486,853
Public works 2,308,478 2,260,827
Community development 578,618 526,250
Interest on long-term debt 15,228 13,000
Total expenses 9,996,224 9,156,331
Change in net position 2,801,421 1,153,711
Begiming net position 27.990.,656 26.836.945
Ending net position 30,792,077 27,990,656

Charges for services increased by $535,673 or 46%. This is due to a $450,000 agreement fee with the solid waste
provider. In addition, there were $48,467 attributable to International Street Fair sponsorships.

Capital grants and contribution decreased from $183,881 from the prior fiscal year to $0 in the current fiscal
year. There weren't any grant or project reimbursements in the current fiscal year.

General government expenditures increased by $801,193 or 48%. This is due to an increase of $200,000 in
pension expenses, $300,000 increase in insurance expenses, $276,000 in contract services expenses.

All other expenditures remained largely the same.
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Taxes, operating grants and contributions and charges for services provide 95.6% of the overall revenue
sources of the governmental activities. Taxes include property, transient occupancy, sales, franchise, business
license and other taxes (transfer tax, Measure V and AB1290).
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Business-type Activities

The analysis of business-type activities focuses on the net position and changes in net position of the City’s
residential refuse service function which is presented in the government-wide financial statements. This is the
first year of existence for this fund.

Business-Type Activities Net Position

2016 2015

Current assets and other assets $ 56,125 $ 109,659

Total assets 56,125 109,659

Other liabilities - 75,452

Total liabilities - 75,452
Net position:

Unrestricted 56,125 34,207

Total net position $ 56,125 % 34,207

The net position of the business-type activities represents 1% of the City’s total net position. Business-type net
position increased by $21,918. The increase is attributed to charges for services exceeding the cost of providing
the services.

Business-type Change in Net Position

2016 2015
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 398,788  § 939,640

Total Revenues 398,788 939,640
Expenses
Contract Services 376,870 905,433

Total Expenses : 376,870 905,433
Change in net position 21,918 34,207
Beginning net position 34,207 -
Ending net position $ 56,125  $ 34,207

The City’s business-type program revenues exceeded expenses by $21,918, meaning charges for services
recovered operating expenses.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
As noted earlier, the City of Artesia uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Artesia’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of
Artesia’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Artesia’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $12,331,892 an increase of $772,442 in comparison with the prior year. Of this amount, there
is $676,056 unassigned net fund balance available for spending at the government's discretion. All fund
balance is nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned to indicate that it is not available for new spending.
Approximately 52% of this amount is committed to indicate that it is not available because it has committed
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for contingency reserves. Another 22% is restricted for specific uses. Approximately 20% of this amount is
assigned, which indicate that these amounts are not available because they are intended for specific uses
designated by the City Council. The remainder of the fund balance is nonspendable, as they reflect prepaid
items. Two funds qualify as major funds under the GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and
Management Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, reporting criteria: the General Fund and
Capital Projects Fund.

The following is a summary of fund balances of the governmental funds for fiscal years 2015-2016:

$13,000,000
$12,000,000
$11,000,000
$10,000,000
$9,000,000
$8,000,000
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$6,000,000
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2015 2016
B unassigned $2,718,312 $676,056

DONonspendable Restricted Committed
Assigned

B Total $11,559,450 $12,331,892

$8,841,138 $11,655,836

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Artesia. At the end of the current fiscal year, the
total fund balance was $9,014,745, with $19,505 non-spendable for prepaid items and $6,400,000 committed to
funding future commitments and $2,595,240 assigned for specific projects. Comparing both total and
unassigned fund balance ($0) to total fund expenditures is a measure of the general fund’s liquidity.
Unassigned fund balance represents 0% of the total general fund revenue ($10,496,402) and represents 0% of
total general fund expenditures ($7,694,917).

e The fund balance of the general fund decreased by $613,588 during the fiscal year. An increase was
anticipated through the budgetary process and benchmarked at $275,148. An overall increase of
$2,716,434 in revenue over budget was due to an increase in tax revenue of $2,360,448 (primarily due to
an additional $2,288,687 received from franchises over the prior year), and an increase of $428,917 in
charges for services revenue. An overall increase of $3,587,501 in expenditures over budget was due to
transfers out of $3,542,465 to the Capital Projects Fund for the Downtown Project. The combined
increase in revenue and increase in expenditures resulted in a General Fund decrease.

The Capital Projects Fund qualifies as a major fund in 2015-16.

The Capital Projects Fund balance increased by $893,836. The General Fund transferred bond proceeds funds
during the fiscal year.

Proprietary Funds
The City’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide statements,

but in greater detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Residential Refuse Service fund increased to $56,125 in the fiscal year. This is
the second year of operation for this fund. Other factors concerning the finances of this fund are addressed in
the discussion of the business-type activities.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights
There was no difference between the original budget and the final amended budget for appropriations. Actual
revenue, less transfers, was higher than the final budget by 32%.

Differences between the final appropriations and actual expenditures totaled $3,587,501. Actual expenditures
were less than budgeted for parks and recreation, Maintenance and community development totaling
$355,951. Actual expenditures exceeded budget in general government, public safety and transfers out
totaling $3,943,452.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Artesia’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of
June 30, 2016, amounts to $24,091,518 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings, improvements, automobile equipment, office furniture and equipment, other
equipment, and infrastructure. The total increase in the City of Artesia’s capital assets (net of depreciation) for
the 2015-16 fiscal years was $2,730,395. The following is a summary of capital assets (net of depreciation) as of
June 30, 2016 and 2015:

Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
2016 2015

Governmental activities
Land 5 6,233,216 § 6,233,216
Buildings 934,777 970,051
Improvements other than buildings 225,403 273,704
Automobile equipment 47,084 62,487
Office furniture and equipment 5,319 1,501
Other equipment 405,437 434,808
Infrastructure 10,391,442 10,972,465
Construction in progress 5,848,840 2,412,891

Total governmental activities $ 24,091,518 $ 21,361,123

Major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following:
e Construction in progress - several street projects were in process.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

Debt Administration
At the end of the fiscal year, the City had total long-term debt outstanding of $4,772,604. This includes capital

lease, compensated absences, other post-employment benefits and net pension liability as required by GASB 68
and 71. The following is summary of the outstanding debt (net of unamortized charges) at June 30, 2016 and

2015:
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Outstanding Debt

2016 2015
Governmental activities
Capital lease payable 97,908 148,384
Compensated absences 328,086 463,386
Other post-employment benefits obligation (OPEB) 2,445,970 2,068,932
Net pension liability 1,900,640 2,169,712
Total governmental activities 4,772,604 4,850414

Long-term Debt. There was a decrease in long-term debt of $537,054 over the prior year.

©

°

Capital lease decreased by $50,476 which were lease payments made.

Compensated absences liability decreased $135,300 for the decrease in accrued time off payable.
OPEB liability increased $377,040 for the increase in future benefits payable.

Net pension liability decreased $269,072 for the decrease in future retirement benefits payable.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt and other long-term liabilities can be found in notes 5, 8
and 9 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

City retirement rates (CalPERS) will decrease by 1.505 points for 2016/2017.

CalPERS Annual Unfunded Accrued Liability valuation as of 6/30/13 will increase 2016/2017 annual
cost by an additional $70,608.00.

Employees will begin contributing to the CalPERS retirement program at 3% during 2016/2017.
General Fund Sales tax revenue has increased by 5.37% over 2013/2014. The projection for 2015/16 is
estimated to increase 5.0% over 2015/16 actual.

City has maximized the franchise fee payment with the successful negotiation of a franchise trash
contract commencing in fiscal year 2016/17.

Increases to the City’s contingency and designated reserves will continue to be a budget priority.

The City is continuing a priority of conservative fiscal management where an evaluation of expenses with
potential reductions will be implemented for government efficiencies. Conversely, the City is actively
pursuing other economic development programs to enhance the City’s revenue resource structure.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Artesia’s finances for all those
with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the City Manager,
18747 Clarkdale Avenue, Artesia, CA 90701.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




GOVERNMENT-WIDE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local governments prescribe two basic
government-wide financial statements:

e Statement of Net Position
e Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position

The government-wide financial statements include all governmental and business-type activities of the City of
Artesia. Their purpose is to summarize the City’s consolidated financial activities and position. The
government-wide financial statements are prepared on a full accrual basis (including depreciation) similar to
a private business entity.

Statement of Net Position is the basic government-wide statement of position. A statement of position presents
all of an entity’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows and net position (equity). The
presentation is referred to as the statement of net position (rather than balance sheef), and the difference
between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows is referred to as net position (rather than

equity).

GAAP require the City’s governmental activities be reported separately from its business-type activities. In
general, governmental activities include activities reported in the general, special revenue, and capital projects
funds. The City’s government-wide statement of net position provides a column for the governmental
activities.

The difference of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources in the
government-wide statement of net position is referred to as net position. Net position are categorized as
follows:

e Net investment in capital assets
e Restricted
e Unrestricted

Statement of Activities and Changes in Nef Position is used to report changes in net position reported on the
government-wide statement of net position. The government-wide statement of activities presents expenses
before revenues. This emphasizes that in the public sector, revenues are generated for the express purpose of
providing services rather than as an end in themselves.

The first column of the government-wide statement of activities present the direct expenses associated with
each of the City’s functional activities:
e General government
Public safety
Parks and recreation
Maintenance
Public works
Community development
Interest on long-term debt

The government-wide statements include the financial activities of the City of Artesia and its blended
component units (Artesia Housing Authority and Artesia Parking Authority).
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City of Artesia

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016
Primary
Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
. ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 12,339,534 % 47,191 % 12,386,725
Receivables:
Accounts 963,753 8,934 972,687
Loan 47,313 47,313
Interest 20,316 20,316
Intergovernmental 13,489 13,489
Prepaid items 19,505 19,505
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable assets 12,082,056 12,082,056
Depreciable assets, net 12,009,462 12,009,462
Total capital assets 24,091,518 24,091,518
Total assets 37,495,428 56,125 37,551,553
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow - Pension 110,672 110,672
Total deferred outflows of resources 110,672 110,672
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 858,282 858,282
Accrued Habilities 35,214 35,214
Unearned revenues 117,455 117,455
Deposits payable 21,578 21,578
Noncurrent labilities:
Net postemployment benefit obligation 2,445,972 2,445,972
Net pension liability 1,900,640 1,900,640
Due within one year 205,413 205413
Due in more than one year 220,581 220,581
Total liabilities 5,805,135 5,805,135
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflow - Pension (1,008,888) (1,008,888)
Total deferred outflows of resources (1,008,888) (1,008,888)
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 23,993,612 23,993,612
Restricted for:
Public safety 437 437
Street projects 1,597,333 1,597,333
Housing 302,308 302,308
Other purposes 134,802 134,802
Total restricted 2,034,880 2,034,880
Unrestricted 4,763,585 56,125 4,819,710
Total net position 5 30,792,077 56,125 $ 30,848,202

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Artesia
Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Capital Total
for Grants and Grants and Program
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Revenues
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 2,458,793 $ 551,206 % 855,059 % - $ 1,406,265
Public safety 3,376,566 762,385 143,942 906,327
Parks and recreation 1,258,541 74,013 127,160 201,173
Public works 2,308,478 242,516 637,239 879,755
Community development 578,618 58,606 58,606
Interest on long-term debt 15,228
Total governmental activities 9,996,224 1,688,726 1,763,400 3,452,126
Business-type activities:
Residential refuse 376,870 398,788
Total business-type activities 376,870 398,788
Total primary government $ 10,373,094 $ 2,087,514 $ 1,763,400 $ - $ 3,452,126
General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose

Transient occupancy taxes

Sales taxes

Franchise taxes

Business licenses taxes

Other taxes

Motor vehicle license fee collection in excess - unrestricted

Use of money and property

Other

Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position - beginning of year

Net position - end of year

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

28



Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ (1,052,528) $ - % (1,052,528)
(2,470,239) (2,470,239)
(1,057,368) (1,057,368)
(1,428,723) (1,428,723)
(520,012) (520,012)
(15,228) (15,228)
(6,544,098) (6,544,098)
21,918 21,918
21,918 21,918
(6,544,098) 21,918 (6,522,180)
1,778,796 1,778,796
553,188 553,188
3,038,340 3,038,340
2,696,612 2,696,612
518,569 518,569
192,493 192,493
6,798 6,798
548,037 548,037
12,686 12,686
9,345,519 9,345,519
2,801,421 21,918 2,823,339
27,990,656 34,207 28,024,863

$ 30,792,077 $ 56,125 $ 30,848,202
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Governmental Fund Financial Statements
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements



GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local governments prescribe the following
basic governmental fund financial statements:

o Balance Sheet
e Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

The governmental fund financial statements include all the major individual governmental funds and the total
of non-major funds of the City of Artesia. The governmental fund financial statements are prepared on a
modified accrual basis. The major governmental funds of the City are as follows:

General Fund accounts for the revenues and expenditures used to carry out basic governmental activities of
the City such as general government, public safety, parks and recreation, public works, and community
development. Revenue is recorded by source (e.g., taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental, charges for
services and fines and forfeits). General Fund expenditures are made primarily for current day-to-day
operations and operating equipment. They are recorded by major functional classification and operating
departments. This fund accounts for all financial transactions not properly accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects is a capital project fund and accounts for funds received that have a broader discretionary use
by the City Council for capital improvements.

Budgetary comparison schedule for the General fund is included in the required supplementary section.
Budgetary comparison schedules for the capital projects fund and individual non-major funds are located in
the supplemental information section of the financial statements.



City of Artesia
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2016
Non-major Total
General Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Projects Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments 6,161,813 $ 3,504,934 $ 2,672,787 S 12,339,534
Receivables:
Accounts 804,680 9,394 149,679 963,753
Loan 47,313 47,313
Interest 20,316 20,316
Prepaid items 19,505 19,505
Due from other governments 13,489 13,489
Due from other funds 2,669,927 2,669,927
Total assets 9,676,241 5 3,561,641 $ 2,835,955 3 16,073,837
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 606,906 $ 163,945 $ 87,431 $ 858,282
Accrued liabilities 28,296 6,918 35,214
Deferred revenues 16,611 47,313 53,531 117,455
Deposit payable 9,683 11,895 21,578
Due to other funds 2,599,523 70,404 2,669,927
Total liabilities 661,496 2,810,781 230,179 3,702,456
Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Unavailable revenues 39,489 39,489
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items 19,505 19,505
Restricted for:
Housing projects 302,308 302,308
Street projects 171,913 171,913
Transportation projects 1,470,284 1,470,284
Air quality projects 696,149 696,149
Public safety 437 437
Comumitted to:
Contingency reserve 6,400,000 6,400,000
Assigned to:
Operating Reserve 692,240 692,240
Water District Consolidation Analysis 200,000 200,000
Sanitation District Consolidation Analysis 50,000 50,000
Preliminary Planning Projects 190,000 190,000
Organizational Development Plan 125,000 125,000
Accrued Leave Reserve 100,000 100,000
Economic Development 125,000 125,000
General Contingencies 123,000 123,000
Measure M 100,000 100,000
Business Fagade Improvements 100,000 100,000
Business Improvement District 125,000 125,000
Business improvement District WiFi 85,000 85,000
City-Wide WiFi 50,000 50,000
City Facility improvements 80,000 80,000
Water Tower Project (Painting) 50,000 50,000
Water Tower Project (Repairs) 50,000 50,000
Vehicle & Equipment Replacement 75,000 75,000
Specific Plan Development 50,000 50,000
General Plan Update 30,000 30,000
Disaster Response Training 25,000 25,000
CalPERS Net Pension Unfunded Liability 85,000 85,000
CalPERS Net Retiree Health Unfunded Liability 85,000 85,000
Unassigned 750,860 (74,804) 676,056
Total fund balances 9,014,745 750,860 2,566,287 12,331,892
Total liabilities and fund balances 9,676,241 $ 3,561,641 5 2,835,955 5 16,073,837

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Artesia

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 12,331,892

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets were different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities were not current financial resources. Therefore, they were not
reported in the governmental funds. 24,091,518

Long-term Habilities were not due and payable in the current period. Therefore, they were not reported in the

governmental funds.
Compensated absences {328,086)
Other postemployment benefits payable (2,445,972)
Capital lease (97,908)
Total long-term liabilities (2,871,966)
Pension related debt applicable to the City governmental activities are not due and payable in the current period and
accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pension are only reported in the Statement of Net Position as the changes in these amounts effects only the
government-wide statements for governmental activities.
Deferred outflows of resources 110,672
Deferred inflows of resources (1,008,888)
Pension liability (1,900,640)
Total pension related items (2,798,856)
Certain revenues were recorded as deferred revenue in the governmental funds because they did not meet the revenue
recognition criteria. However, they were treated as revenues in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. 39,489

Net Position of Governmental Activities S 30,792,077

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Artesia

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Developer fees

Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Parks and recreation
Maintenance
Public works
Community Development
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS):
Beginning of year

End of year

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Capital Project Fund
Non-major Total
General Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Projects Funds Funds

7,903,218 $ - $ 881,581 $ 8,784,799
542,950 542,950
850,058 1,452,711 2,302,769
637,831 25,362 383,095 1,046,288
455,695 4,189 88,150 548,034
40,883 40,883
58,606 58,606
7,161 5,524 12,685
10,496,402 29,551 2,811,061 13,337,014
2,332,288 5,273 2,337,561
3,049,294 287,771 3,337,065
940,380 175,168 1,115,548
945,292 945,292
422,054 422,054

385,372 193,246 578,618
42,291 2,640,648 1,079,791 3,762,730
50,476 50,476

15,228 15,228

7,694,917 2,640,648 2,229,007 12,564,572
2,801,485 (2,611,097) 582,054 772,442
127,392 3,504,933 685,270 4,317,595
(3,542,465) (775,130) (4,317,595)

(3,/415,073) 3,504,933 (89,860)

(613,588) 893,836 492,194 772,442
9,628,333 (142,976) 2,074,093 11,559,450
9,014,745 $ 750,860 $ 2,566,287 $ 12,331,892
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City of Artesia
Reconciliation of the Governmental Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Positior
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 772,442

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets were different because:

Governmental funds reported capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and
Changes in Net Assets, the cost of those assets was allocated over the estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This

was the amount of capital assets recorded in the current period:
Capital outlay 3,762,730

Less: Repairs and Maintenance (298,416)

Depreciation expense on capital assets was reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net
Assets, but it did not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense was not reported as an

expenditure in the governmental funds. (733,919)

Compensated absences, other postemployment benefit, and claims were reported in the Government-Wide Statement of

Activities and Changes in Net Assets, but it did not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, they were not

reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds.
Change in compensated absences 135,300
Change in other postemployment benefits (377,040)
Capital lease 50,476

Pension expense reported in the governmental funds includes the annual required contributions. In the Statement of

Activities, pension expense includes the change in the net pension liability and related change in pension amounts for

deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. 29,217

Certain revenues were recorded as deferred revenue in the governmental funds because they did not meet the revenue

recognition criteria of availability. However, they were included as revenue in the Governmental-Wide Statement of

Activities and Changes in Net Assets under the full accrual basis. (539,369)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 2,801,421

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local governments prescribe following basic
proprietary fund financial statements:

e Statement of Net Position
e Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
e Statement of Cash Flows

The proprietary fund financial statements include the major Residential Refuse Service enterprise fund of the
City of Artesia.

The proprietary financial statements are prepared on a full accrual basis (including depreciation) similar to a
private business entity.

Enterprise funds are used to account for activities that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises. The intent is to recover costs of operation on a continuing basis through user charges.

Residential Refuse Service is used to account for the operation of the City’s trash hauling service. The intent
of this fund is to recover costs of operation and capital maintenance (depreciation).



City of Artesia
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund

June 30, 2016

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Total labilities

NET POSITION:
Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Residential
Refuse
Service

$ 47,191

8,934

S 6105

56,125
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City of Artesia
Statement of Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Residential
Refuse
Service
REVENUES:
Charges for services $ 398,788
Total revenues 398,788
EXPENSES:
Current:
Contract services 376,870
Total expenses 376,870
Change in net position 21,918
NET POSITION:
Beginning of year 34,207
End of year $ 56,125

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Artesia
Statement of Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Residential
Refuse
Service
REVENUES:
Charges for services $ 398,788
Total revenues 398,788
EXPENSES:
Current:
Contract services 376,870
Total expenses 376,870
Change in net position 21,918
NET POSITION:
Beginning of year 34,207
End of year $ 56,125

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Artesia
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers, users and grants
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Residential
Refuse
Service

402,380
(452,322)

(49,942)

(49,942)

97,133

47,191

21,918

3,592
(75,452)

(71,860)

(49,942)
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FIDUCIARY FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local governments prescribe following basic
proprietary fund financial statements:

e Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
e Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

The fiduciary financial statements report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore
cannot be used to support the government’s own programs.

The fiduciary financial statements are prepared on a full accrual basis (including depreciation) similar to a
private business entity.

Successor Agency to the Artesia Redevelopment Agency Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for the
custodial responsibilities assigned to the Successor Agency to the Artesia Redevelopment Agency.

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City as trustee or agent for individuals, private
organizations, or other governmental units or funds.



City of Artesia

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2016
Successor Agency
to the Artesia
Redevelopment
Agency
Private Purpose Agency
Trust Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 2,077,546 5 428,619
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 1,140,603
Receivables:
Accounts Receivable 14,137
Total assets $ 3,218,149 $ 442,756
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 4,200 $ 59,819
Deposits payable 382,937
Accrued interest payable 73,195
Long-term debt:
Due within one year 245,000
Due in more than one year 14,419,694
Total liabilities 14,742,089 $ 442,756
NET POSITION:
Held in trust for other purposes $ (11,523,940)

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF ARTESIA

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Private-Purpose Trust Fund - Successor Agency
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Additions:
Property taxes $ 1,262,839
Use of money and property 18
Total additions 1,262,857

Deductions:

Community development 3,700

Administrative expenses 250,000

Interest and fiscal charges 912,942

Total deductions 1,166,642

Change in net position 96,215
Net position - beginning (11,620,155)
Net position - ending h) (11,523,940)

40



NOTES TO BASIC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Artesia, California (City), have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stated of America (U.S. GAAP) as applied to
governmental agencies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below.

A. Description of Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated on May 29, 1959, under the laws of the State of California and enjoys all the
rights and privileges applicable to a General Law City. The City is governed by an elected five-member
board. The accompanying financial statements present the City and its component units defined as legally
separate entities that meet any one of the following tests:

e The City appoints the voting majority of the board of the component unit and:
o is able to impose its will on the component unit and/or
o isin arelationship of financial benefit or burden with the component unit.
e The component unit is fiscally dependent upon the City.
¢ The financial statements of the City would be misleading if data from the component unit were
omitted.

Artesia_Housing Authority - The five members of the City Council serve as the governing body of the
Housing Authority and exercise all rights, powers, duties and privileges of the Housing Authority. The
Mayor serves as the Chairperson of the Housing Authority. The purpose of the Housing Authority is to
prepare and execute plans for housing projects within the City. The activity of this blended component unit
is reported in the Housing Authority Special Revenue Fund.

Artesia Parking Authority - The five members of the City Council serve as the governing body of the Parking
Authority and exercise all rights, powers, duties and privileges of the Parking Authority. The Mayor serves
as the Chairperson of the Parking Authority. The purpose of the Parking Authority is to prepare and
execute plans for parking projects within the City. The activity of this blended component unit is reported
in the Paid Parking Special Revenue Fund.

Separate financial statements are not prepared for the Housing Authority or the Parking Authority. These
component units are included in the primary government because of the significance of their financial or
operation relationship and they has the same governing body as the City.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
fund equity, revenues, and expenditures. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in
individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities are controlled.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued

The City’s Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of
Activities and Changes in Net Position. These statements present summaries of governmental activities and
the business-type activity for the City. Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from the business-type activity, which relies to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Fiduciary activities of the City are not included in these
statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

These basic financial statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources, including capital assets, as well as infrastructure assets, and long-term
liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents
changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in
which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. The
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses
of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Certain indirect costs are included in the program expenses
reported for specific functions.

Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the City in three categories:
» Charges for services to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,

services, or privileges provided by a given function
» Operating grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a

given function
> Capital grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a given

function

Certain eliminations have been made in regards to interfund activities, payables, and receivables. All
internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been eliminated, including due to/from other funds

and transfers in/out.

Governmental Funds Financial Statements

Governmental Funds Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds
aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in net position
as presented in these statements to the net position presented in the Government-Wide Financial
Statements. The City has presented all major funds that met the applicable criteria.
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City of Artesia

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued

Governmental Funds Financial Statements, Continued

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or “current financial resources” measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets, deferred outflows of
resources, current liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are included on the Balance Sheet. The
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances presents increases (revenues and
other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net fund balance. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they
become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period.

Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual received soon enough
after year-end such that they are available to finance expenditures of the current period (generally 60 days
after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been treated as
susceptible to accrual by the City, are property tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues, and other taxes.
Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred.

Unavailable revenues arise when potential revenues do not meet both the “measurable” and “available”
criteria for recognition in the current period. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria
are met, the unavailable revenue is removed from the Balance Sheet and revenue is recognized. Unearned
revenues arise when the government receives resources before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant
monies are received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when the
government has a legal claim to the resources, the unearned revenue is removed from the Balance Sheet
and revenue is recognized.

The reconciliations of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements are
provided to explain the differences between the “economic resources” and “current financial resources” basis of
accounting.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and Statement of Cash Flows. Proprietary funds are presented on
an “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources (whether current or
non-current) associated with the activity are included on the Statement of Net Position. The reported fund
equity presents total net position. The operating statement of the proprietary fund presents increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Revenues are recognized when they are earned
and expenses are recognized when the liability is incurred.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City’s residential refuse service proprietary fund is charges to customers for services. The primary
operating expense includes payments to the refuse service provider for the cost of these services. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. The City's fiduciary funds represent a private purpose trust fund and
agency funds. The private purpose trust fund is reported using the “economic resources” measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Agency funds are
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The
agency funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

e The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

e The Capital Projects Capital Projects Fund’'s primary function is to account for funds received that
have a broader discretionary use by the City Council for capital improvements.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

e The Residential Refuse Service Proprietary Fund’s primary function is to account for the operations
of the City’s trash hauling service.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued
The City also reports the following funds:
e The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the revenues derived from specific revenue
sources, which are usually required by law or administrative regulation to be account for in separate

funds.

e The Capital Project Fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures associated with the
acquisition or construction of capital faculties.

o The Private Purpose Trust Fund is used to account for the activities of the Successor Agency to the
Artesia Redevelopment Agency.

e The Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals,
private business and other governmental agencies for the George Nelson Memorial and Senior
Citizens activities and programs.

C. New Accounting Pronouncements

Current Year Standards

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 72

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value
Measurement and Application, addresses accounting and reporting issues related to fair value
measurements. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The pronouncement
provides for three valuation techniques: the market approach, the cost approach and the income approach.
The valuation technique should be consistently applied, maximize the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value falls into
three categories: Level 1 is quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities; Level 2 is for observable
inputs either directly or indirectly; Level 3 is unobservable inputs. The pronouncement is effective for the
year ending June 30, 2016.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
C. New Accounting Pronouncements, Continued

Future GASB Pronouncements

GASB has issued the following statements which may impact the City’s financial reporting requirements in
the future:

o GASB 74 - “Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans”, effective
for periods beginning after June 15, 2016.

o GASB 75 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”,
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

e GASB 77 - “Tax Abatement Disclosures”, effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015.
GASB 78 - “Pension Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans”,
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015.

o GASB 79 - “Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants”, effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2015.

e GASB 80 - “Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units - in amendment of GASB Statement No.
14", effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016.

e GASB 81 - “Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements”, effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,

2016.
o GASB 82 - “Pension Issues - in amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73", effective for

fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016.

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or
Equity

Cash and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments for the City, as well as for its component units, are reported at fair value. The Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) operates in accordance with appropriate State laws and regulations. The reported

value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end
of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" or "advances to / from other funds".
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City of Artesia

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or
Equity, Continued

Receivables and Pavables, Continued

All account and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Property tax
revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes have been levied providing they become
available. Available means then due, or past due, and receivable within the current period and collected
within the current period, or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter (not to exceed 60 days) to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. The County of Los Angeles collects property taxes for the City.
Tax liens attach annually on the first day in January preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
The tax levy covers the fiscal period July 1 to June 30. All secured personal property taxes and one-half of
the taxes on real property are due November 1; the second installment is due February 1. All taxes are
delinquent, if unpaid, on December 10 and April 10, respectively. Unsecured personal property taxes
become due on the first of March each year and are delinquent on August 31.

Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. The fund balances in the
governmental fund types have been reported as nonspendable for amounts equal to the prepaid items in
the fund level statements, since these amounts are not available for appropriation.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, buildings, vehicles, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets, other than infrastructure assets, are defined by the
City as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one
year. Infrastructure assets have a capitalization threshold of $5,000. Purchased or constructed capital assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated
fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 15 years
Vehicles and equipment 3 -10 years
Infrastructure 25 years
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or
Equity, Continued

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and the governmental funds balance sheet will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods
and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that time. The City
has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. That item is the deferred outflow related to
pensions. This amount is equal to employer contributions made after the measurement date of the net
pension liability.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and the governmental funds balance sheet will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods
and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has three items that
qualify for reporting in this category. The first item is unavailable revenues, which is reported only in the
governmental fund balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from two sources:
taxes and grants. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that
the amounts become available. The second item is a deferred inflow related to pensions resulting from the
difference in projected and actual earnings on investments of the pension plan fiduciary net position. This
amount is amortized over five years. The third item is a deferred inflow related to pensions for the changes
in proportion and differences between employer contributions and the proportionate share of
contributions. This amount is amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected
remaining services lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the Plans determined as
of June 30, 2013 (the beginning of the measurement period ended June 30, 2015), which is 3.8 years.

Compensated Absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits.
Vacation pay is payable to employees at the time a vacation is taken or upon termination of employment.
Normally, an employee cannot accrue more than 40 days of vacation time. Sick leave is payable when an
employee is unable to work because of illness. Upon termination, an employee will be paid for any unused
sick leave based upon 100% of the current wage rate in effect.

All vacation and sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. A
liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a
result of employee resignations and retirements. Compensated absences are paid, if matured, out of the
General Fund.
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City of Artesia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or
Equity, Continued

Loneg-Term Obligations

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported
as liabilities in the governmental activities statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums, discounts, and
issuance costs during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Net Position

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements and the Proprietary Fund Statement of Net Position, net
position is classified in the following categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of the assets.

Restricted Net Position - This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or
regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted Net Position - This amount is all net position that does not meet the definition of “net
investment in capital assets” or “restricted net position”.

Net Position Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or
grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net
position and unrestricted - net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements,
a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.

It is the City’s practice to consider restricted - net position to have been depleted before unrestricted - net
position is applied.
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or
Equity, Continued

Fund Balances
In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements, fund balances are classified in the following categories:

Nonspendable - Items that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, such as prepaid items and
inventories, items that are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, such as principal of an
endowment or revolving loan funds.

Restricted - Restricted fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources subject to externally
enforceable legal restrictions. This includes externally imposed restrictions by creditors, such as through
debt covenants, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments, as well as restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - Committed fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources, the use of which is
constrained by limitations that the government imposes upon itself at its highest level of decision making,
normally the governing body, and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner. The City
Council is considered the highest authority for the City and the adoption of a formal resolution is required
to establish a fund balance commitment.

Assigned - Assigned fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources reflecting the government’s
intended use of resources. Assignment of resources can be done by the highest level of decision making or
by a committee or official designated for that purpose. The City Council has authorized the City Manager
for that purpose.

The City has a contingency reserve to address major unforeseen expenditures such as damage to
facilities or infrastructure. The reserve was established by the City Council through resolution 13-
2372 and requires a four-fifths vote to expend the funds. The balance of this reserve as of June 30,
2016 was $6,400,000.

Unassigned - This category is for any balances that have no restrictions placed upon them. The general fund
is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount.

Governmental Fund Balance

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which all restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned
fund balances are available, the City’s policy is to apply in the following order, except for instances wherein
an ordinance specifies the fund balance:

» Restricted

» Committed

» Assigned

» Unassigned
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2. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position or
Equity, Continued

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to /deductions from the Plans’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

E. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. In addition, estimates affect the reported amount of
expenses. Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions.

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2016, cash and investments were reported in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:

Government Fiduciary
Wide Funds
Statement of Statement of
Net Position Net Position Total
Unrestricted assets:
Cash and investments $ 12386725 % 2,506,165 $ 14,892,890
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments held by fiscal agent 1,140,603 1,140,603
Total cash and investments $ 12386725 § 3,646,768 $ _ 16,033.493

Cash and investments at June 30, 2016 consisted of the following:

Cash in hand (petty cash) $ 500
Demand deposits 274,188
Investments 15,758,805

Total cash and investments $ 16,033,493
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy

The City's Investment Policy is reviewed and adopted by the City Council each year. Regarding allowable
investment types, the investment policy is more conservative and restrictive than the investment vehicles
authorized by Section 53600.5 of the California Government Code. Investment vehicles not specifically
mentioned in the City's investment policy, are not authorized unless the policy is amended by the City
Council or is approved as part of the provisions of the bond indentures. Investments are limited to:

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio* _in One Issuer
United States Treasury Notes 5 years None None
United States Government Sponsored
Agency Securities:

Treasury Bills 1 year None None
Treasury Bonds 5 years None None
Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Passbook Savings Accounts N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A $50,000,000 None

N/ A - Not Applicable
* - Excluding amounts held by bond trustees that are not subject to California Government Code restrictions.

The City's investment policy does not contain any specific provisions intended to limit the City's exposure
to interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk.

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy. The
table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustees. The
table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk,
and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Allowed in One Issuer
United States Treasury Obligations None None None
United States Government Sponsored

Agency Securities None None None
Banker’s Acceptances 360 days None None
Commercial Paper 270 days None None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None
Investment Contracts None None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) None None None
Certificates of Deposit None None None

N/ A - Not Applicable
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk
is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from
maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as
necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Remaining
Maturity
(in Years)
Investment Type 1 Year or Less
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $ 14,618,202
Held by Fiscal Agent:
Money market mutual funds 1,140,603

$ 15,758,805

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California
Government Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating, by Standards
and Poor, as of year end for each investment type:

Minimum
Total as of Legal Not
Investment Type June 30, 2016 Rating AAA Rated
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $ 14,618,202 N/A $ - $ 14,618,202
Held by Fiscal Agent:
Money market mutual funds 1,140,603 A 1,140,603
3 15,758,805 $ 1,140,603 $ 14,618,202

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City’s investment policy imposes restrictions for certain types of investments with any one issuer;
however, external investment pools are excluded from this requirement. At June 30, 2016, the City's
investments were with LAIF and money market mutual funds held by fiscal agent which are exempt from

this requirement.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk
that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another
party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount
deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by
pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. At
June 30, 2016, the City deposits (bank balances) were insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
or collateralized as required under California Law, with the exception of cash held by fiscal agent. Of the
$1,140,603 of cash held by fiscal agent, $500,000 is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) and the remaining $640,603 was neither insured by the FDIC nor collateralized as required under
California law.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.
The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at
amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based
on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

Fair Value Measurements

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy establish by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These principles recognize a three tiered fair
value hierarchy as follows: Level 1 - Investments reflect prices quoted in active markets; Level 2 -
Investments reflect prices that are based on similar observable asset either directly or indirectly, which may
include inputs in markets that are not considered active; and Level 3 - Investments reflect prices based
upon unobservable sources. The City has marketable securities that are measured with recurring fair value
measurements as of June 30, 2016 and are valued using quoted market prices (level 1 inputs).

3. LOAN RECEIVABLE

In November 1989, the City entered into an agreement with the Southern California Water Company for the
installation of a domestic water system in an Artesia service area. As part of this agreement, the City loaned
the Southern California Water Company $139,925 with no interest to be repaid over 40 years. At
June 30, 2016 the outstanding loan receivable is $47,313
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows:

Balance as of Balance as of
July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016
Governmental Activites
Nondepreciable capital assets
Land $ 6233216 § - $ - $ 6,233,216
Construction in progress 2,412,891 3,435,949 5,848,840
Total nondepreciable
capital assets 8,646,107 3,435,949 12,082,056
Depreciable capital assets
Buildings 1,761,750 1,761,750
Improvements other than buildings 799,782 799,782
Automobile equipment 446,579 446,579
Office fumiture and equipment 237,246 5,203 242,449
Other equipment 1,067,479 23,162 1,090,641
Infrastructure 14,336,850 14,336,850
Total depreciable capital assets 18,649,686 28,365 18,678,051
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings (791,699) (35,274) (826,973)
Improvements other than buildings (526,077) (48,301) (574,378)
Automobile equipment (384,092) (15,403) (399,495)
Office furniture and equipment (235,745) (1,386) (237,131)
Other equipment (632,672) (52,532) (685,204)
Infrastructure (3,364,385) (581,023) (3,945,408)
Total accumulated depreciation (5,934,670) (733,919) (6,668,589)
Net depreciable capital assets 12,715,016 (705,554) 12,009,462
Net capital assets $ 21,361,123 $ 2,730,395 § - $ 24,091,518

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government $ 26,685
Public works 587,802
Parks and recreation 102,296
Public safety 17,136

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 733,919
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5. LONG-TERM DEBT
The following is a schedule of changes in long-term debt of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016:

Balance at Balance at Due Within
June 30,2015 Additions Repayments June 30, 2016 One Year

Govermnmental Activities:

Compensated absences $ 463,386 § 20,288 $ (155,588) $ 32808 §$ 151,035
Capital Lease 148,384 (50,476) 97,908 54,378
OPEB 2,068,930 673,648 (296,608) 2,445,970
Net pension liability 2,169,712 (269,072) 1,900,640

Total $ 4850412 § 693,936 $ (771,744) $ 4772604 § 205,413

Compensated Absences

The compensated absences payable has been accrued for governmental activities on the Government-Wide
Financial Statements. Typically, the General Fund has been used to liquidate the liability for compensated
absences. There is no fixed payment schedule to pay these liabilities. The total amount of compensated
absences payable at June 30, 2016 was $328,086.

Capital Lease

The City entered into a capital lease with CALE America, Inc. for parking meters. This lease agreement
qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of
future minimum lease payments as of the inception date in the City’s capital assets. The future minimum lease
obligations and the net present value of these payments as of June 30, 2016, are as follows:

Year Ending Governmental
June 30, Activities
2017 $ 59,856
2018 44,892
Total minimum lease payments 104,748
Less: amounts representing interest (6,840)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 97,908

The assets acquired through the capital lease are as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Other equipment $ 249110
Less: accumulated depreciation (49,822)
$ 199,288
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6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2016, was as follows:
Due To / Due From Other Funds

At June 30, 2016, the City had the following due to/from other funds:

Due To (payable) Due From (receivable) Amount
Non-major Governmental Funds General Fund $ 70404
Capital Projects Fund General Fund 2,599,523
 $2,669927

The above interfund balances resulted from temporary reclassifications made at June 30, 2016 to cover cash
shortfalls.

Interfund Transfers

Transfers Out Transfers In Amount
General Fund Capital Projects Fund $ 3,504,933
Artesia Lighting District Fund 37,532
Non-major Governmental Funds General Fund 127,392
Non-major Governmental Funds 647,738
$ 4,317 595

The General Fund received transfers from the non-major Parks & Recreation Grants and Billboard Special
Revenue Funds for the purpose of expenditure offset. The General Fund provided matching funds to the
major Capital Projects Fund as well as non-major Artesia Lighting District Special Revenue Fund. The non-
major Hazard and Litigation Special Revenue Fund received transfers from both the non-major Gas Tax
Special Revenue Fund and the non-major Air Quality Special Revenue Fund for the purpose of expenditure
offset.

7. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES
Deficit Fund Balances
At June 30, 2016, the following funds had deficit fund balances:

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund:
Parks & Recreation Grants $ (44,864)
Artesia Lighting District (16,476)

Non-major Governmental Capital Projects Fund:
Safe Route to School (13,489)

Each of the Special Revenue and Capital Projects Fund with deficit fund balances received funding through
current programs and will be reimbursed once grant drawdown requests are approved by the granting
agencies.
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7.

OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES, Continued

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

Excess of expenditures over appropriations occurred at individual departmental levels and major categories
during the fiscal year 2016 as follows:

Excess
Expenditures
Actual Budgeted Over
Amounts Amounts Appropriations
Major Funds:
General Fund:
General government:
City attorney $ 567,117  $ 189,044 $ 378,073
City manager 502,547 408,261 94,286
General operations 292,639 292,639
Business taxes & permits 34,583 33,479 1,104
Public safety 3,049,294 3,027,931 21,363
Maintenance:
Building and safety 289,707 270,000 19,707
Maintenance 593,087 542,041 51,046
Transfers out 3,542,465 3,542,465
Capital Projects:
Capital outlay 2,640,648 2,640,648
Non-major Governmental Special Revenue Funds:
State Gas Tax - Transfers out 615,000 615,000
Parks and Recreation - Capital outlay 44,864 44,864
Parks and Recreation - Transfers out 47,000 47,000
Proposition C - Public works 67,143 59,900 7,243
Air Quality - Transfers out 32,738 32,000 738
Hazard & Litigation - Capital outlay 358,345 320,000 38,345
California Beverage Recycling - General government 5,273 5,060 213
Artesia Lighting District - Community development 192,853 165,700 27,153
Paid Parking - Interest and fiscal charges 15,228 9,380 5,848
Billboard - Transfers out 80,392 80,160 232
C.0.P.S. Grant - Public safety 144,401 100,000 44,401
Measure R - Capital outlay 548,921 163,858 385,063
SAFE Route to School - Capital outlay 1,514 1,500 14

Existing resources, including the unassigned fund balance were utilized to fund the excess expenditures
over appropriations.

8.

A.

RETIREMENT PLANS

General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan Descriptions

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City’s
Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plans, cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans
administered by the California Public Employees” Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions
under the Plans are established by State statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available
reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions
and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and
death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on
years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total
service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for
non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic
Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living
adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees” Retirement Law.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous
Prior to On or After
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @60 2%@62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 63 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.092% to 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 8.738% 6.25%
Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be
effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for both Plans are
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is
the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to contribute
the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2016, the City reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net
pension liability of the City Miscellaneous Plan as follows:

Proportionate
Share of Net
Pension Liability

$ 1,900,640
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions, Continued

The City’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total
pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2014 rolled forward to June 30, 2015 using standard update procedures. The
City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term
share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating
employers, actuarially determined.

The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 30, 2014 and 2015 was

as follows:
City Miscellaneous
Plan
Proportion - June 30, 2014 0.08779%
Proportion - June 30, 2015 0.06597%
Change - Increase (Decrease) -0.02183%

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $122,602. At June 30, 2016, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date ~ $ 102,746 $ -
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments (37,591)
Differences based on actual experience 7,926 '
Differences based on change of assumptions (74,985)
Differences between actual vs proportionate contribution (252,391)
Adjustment due to differences in proportions (643,921)
Total $ 110,672 $ (1,008,888)

$102,746 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending
June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized as pension expense as follows:
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions, Continued

Fiscal Year Ended
June 30,
2017 $ (381,773)
2018 (376,641)
2019 (290,599)
2020 48,051
Total $ (1,000,962)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuations were determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Miscellaneous

Valuation Date June 30, 2014
Measurement Date June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65%

Inflation 2.75%

Payroll Growth 3.00%

Projected Salary Increase 3.30%-14.20% (1)

Investment Rate of Return 7.50% (2)

Mortality Derived using CalPERS'

Membership Data for all Funds

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014
valuation were based on the results of a January 2015 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to
2011. Further details of the Experience Study can found on the CalPERS website.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65% for each Plan. To determine
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan,
CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from
the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets.
Therefore, the current 7.65 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate
calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent will be applied to all
plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a
detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions, Continued

Discount Rate, Continued

CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability
Management (ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes to
the discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, CalPERS
expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB 67 and 68 calculations
through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year. CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference
in calculation until such time as a change in methodology occurs.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the
short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the
expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was
calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated
using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the
single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New Strategic Real Return Year 1 - Real Return Years
Asset Class Allocation 10(a) 11+b)
Global Equity 51.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.00% -0.55% -1.05%

Total 100.00%
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Ouiflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions, Continued

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or
1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Miscellaneous
1% Decrease 6.65%
Net Pension Liability $ 3,035,062
Current Discount Rate 7.65%
Net Pension Liability $ 1,900,640
1% Increase 8.65%
Net Pension Liability $ 798,09

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued CalPERS financial reports.

C. Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2016, the City had no outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for
the year ended June 30, 2016.

9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Plan Description

The City provides retiree medical benefits under the CalPERS health plan, which provides medical
insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses in accordance with various labor agreements. Copies
of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained at CalPERS FExecutive Office, 400 P Street,
Sacramento, CA 95814.

Eligibility

Employees are eligible for retiree health benefits if they retire from the City on or after age 50 (unless
disabled) and are eligible for a CalPERS pension. The benefits are available only to employees who retire
from the City. Membership of the plan consisted of 29 eligible active employees and 25 enrolled eligible
retirees at June 30, 2016. These amounts do not reflect current retirees not enrolled in the CalPERS health
plan who are eligible to enroll in the plan at a later date.
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9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued
Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by the
City and the City Council. The City makes a defined monthly payment towards the cost of each retiree’s
coverage. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For the
year ended June 30, 2016, the City contributed $176,962 to the plan in premium payments for retiree
insurance. No payments were made to the trust.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined to provide a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal costs each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.

As of the July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation, the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for the year ended
Tune 30, 2016, was $590,891. The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for
the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation:

Annual required contribution $ 590,891
Interest on net OPEB obligation 82,757
Adjustment to annual required contribution (119,646)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 554,002
Contributions made (176,962)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 377,040
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 2,068,930
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 2445970

The City’s annual OPEB cost, annual contribution, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2016 and the two preceding years are presented below.

Percentage
Annual Actual of Annual Net
Fiscal OPEB Annual OPEB Cost OPEB
Year Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation
6/30/2014 $ 444,289 $ 169,163 38% $ 1,803,946
6/30/2015 439,384 174,398 40% 2,068,932
6/30/2016 554,002 176,962 32% 2,445,970

Typically, the General Fund has been used to liquidate the liability for other post-employment benefits.
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9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued
Funding Status and Progress

As of July 1, 2015, the most recent valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $5,696,832,
and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$5,696,832 and a funded ratio (actuarial value of assets as a percentage of the actuarial accrued liability) of
0%. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $1,437,166 and the
ratio of the UAAL to covered payroll was 396.39%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following
the notes to the basic financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities
for the benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between employer and plan members
to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

The actuarial cost method used for determining the benefit obligations is the projected unit credit method.
The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0% investment rate of return, which is based on assumed long-term
investment returns on plan assets and on the City’s assets, as appropriate, and a 4.0% discount rate. The
trend rate for dental is 4% while the trend rate for medical is 8% for 2016, decreasing 1% per year until it
reaches 5% in 2018. The inflation rate is 2.5%. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payroll 30 years on an open basis.

10. LIABILITY, PROPERTY AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROTECTION
A. Description of Self-Insurance Pool Pursuant to Joint Powers Agreement

The City of Artesia is a member of the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (Authority). The
Authority is composed of 118 California public entities and is organized under a joint powers agreement
pursuant to California Government Code §6500 et seq. The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and
administer programs for the pooling of self-insured losses, to purchase excess insurance or reinsurance, and
to arrange for group purchased insurance for property and other lines of coverage. The Authority began
covering claims of its members in 1978. Each member government has an elected official as its
representative on the Board of Directors which operates through a nine-member Executive Committee.
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10. LIABILITY, PROPERTY AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROTECTION, Continued
B. Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority

Each member pays an annual contribution to cover estimated losses for the coverage period. A
retrospective adjustment is then conducted annually thereafter, for coverage years 2012-13 and prior.
Retrospective adjustments are scheduled to continue indefinitely on coverage years 2012-13 and prior, until
all claims incurred during those coverage years are closed, on a pool-wide basis. This subsequent cost
re-allocation among members, based on actual claim development, can result in adjustments of either
refunds or additional deposits required. Coverage years 2013-14 and forward are not subject to routine
annual retrospective adjustment.

The total funding requirement for self-insurance programs is estimated using actuarial models and
pre-funded through the annual contribution. Costs are allocated to individual agencies based on exposure
(payroll) and experience (claims) relative to other members of the risk-sharing pool. Additional
information regarding the cost allocation methodology is provided below.

Liability: In the liability program, claims are pooled separately between police and general government
exposures. (1) The payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members. A variable
credibility factor is determined for each member, which establishes the weight applied to payroll and the
weight applied to losses within the formula. (2) The first layer of losses includes incurred costs up to $30,000
for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the first layer.
(3) The second layer of losses includes incurred costs from $30,000 to $750,000 for each occurrence and is
evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the second layer. (4) Incurred costs from
$750,000 to $50 million, are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second
loss layers. For 2015-15, the Authority’s pooled retention is $2 million per occurrence, with reinsurance to
$20 million, and excess insurance to $50 million. The Authority’s reinsurance contracts are subject to the
following additional pooled retentions: (a) 50% of the $2.5 million annual aggregate deductible in the
$3 million x/s $2 million layer, (b) 50% quota share of the $3 million x/s $2 million layer, and (c) $3 million
annual aggregate deductible in the $5 million x/s $10 million layer.

The overall coverage limit for each member, including all layers of coverage, is $50 million per occurrence.
Costs of covered claim for subsidence losses have a sub-limit of $30 million per occurrence.

Workers’ Compensation Coverage: The City of Artesia also participates in the workers’ compensation pool
administered by the Authority. In the workers’ compensation program claims are pooled separately
between public safety (police and fire) and general government exposures. (1) The payroll of each member
is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members. A variable credibility factor is determined for each
member, which establishes the weight applied to payroll and the weight applied to losses within the
formula. (2) The first layer of losses includes incurred costs up to $50,000 for each occurrence and is
evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the first layer. (3) The second of losses
includes incurred costs from $50,000 to $100,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the
pool’s total incurred costs within the second layer. (4) Incurred costs in excess from $100,000 to statutory
limits are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second loss layers.
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10. LIABILITY, PROPERTY AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROTECTION, Continued
B. Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority, Continued

Workers’ Compensation Coverage, Continued:

For 2015-16 the Authority’s pooled retention is $2 million per occurrence, with reinsurance to statutory
limits under California Workers’” Compensation Law.

Employer’s Liability losses are pooled among members to $2 million. Coverage from $2million to
$5 million is purchased as part of a reinsurance policy, and Employer’s Liability losses from $5 million to
$10 million are pooled among members.

C. Purchased Insurance

Pollution Legal Liability Insurance - The City of Artesia participates in the pollution legal liability insurance
program (formerly called environmental insurance) which is available through the Authority. The policy
covers sudden and gradual pollution of scheduled property, streets, and storm drains owned by the City of
Artesia. Coverage is on a claims-made basis. There is a $50,000 deductible. The Authority has a limit of
$50 million for the 3-year period from July 1, 2015 through July 1, 2017. Each member of the Authority has a
$10 million sub-limit during the 3-year term of the policy.

Property Insurance - The City of Artesia participates in the all-risk property protection program of the
Authority. This insurance protection is underwritten by several insurance companies. City of Artesia
property is currently insured according to a schedule of covered property submitted by the City of Artesia
to the Authority. City of Artesia property currently has all-risk property insurance protection in the amount
of $20,098,105. There is a $5,000 deductible per occurrence except for non-emergency vehicle insurance
which has a $1,000 deductible. Premiums for the coverage are paid annually and are not subject to
retrospective adjustments.

Earthquake and Flood Insurance - The City of Artesia purchases earthquake and flood insurance on a
portion of its property. The earthquake insurance is part of the property protection insurance program of
the Authority. City of Artesia property currently has earthquake protection in the amount of $18,531,170.
There is a deductible of 5% per unit of value with a minimum deductible of $100,000. Premiums for the
coverage are paid annually and are not subject to retrospective adjustments.

Crime Insurance - The City of Artesia purchases crime insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 with
a $2,500 deductible. The fidelity coverage is provided through the Authority. Premiums are paid annually
and are not subject to retrospective adjustments.

D. Adequacy of Protection

During the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protection experienced settlements or
judgments that exceeded pooled or insured coverage. There were no significant reductions in pooled or
insured liability coverage in the fiscal year 2015-16.
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10. LTABILITY, PROPERTY AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROTECTION, Continued

E. Claims Activity

A summary of the changes in claims liabilities for the past three fiscal years is as follows:

Claims Fiscal Year Claims
Year Payable Claims and Payable
Ended (Receivable) Changes in Claims (Receivable)
June 30, July 1 Estimates Payments June 30,
2014 $ - - (223,822) (223,822)
2015 (223,822) 2,571 - (221,251)
2016 (221,251) 221,251 - -

11. RECENT CHANGES IN LEGISLATION AFFECTING CALIFORNIA REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCIES

The California Legislature adopted AB X1 26 in June 2011, adding Part 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161)
and Part 1.85 (commencing with Section 34170) to Division 24 of the California Health and Safety Code.
Part 1.8 immediately suspended the power of California redevelopment agencies to engage in most
activities, except to implement existing contracts, meet already-incurred obligations, preserve existing
assets and prepare for impending dissolution. Pursuant to Part 1.85, all redevelopment agencies in the State
were dissolved as of February 1, 2012, and a successor agency was established for each former
redevelopment agency to wind-down the affairs of its former redevelopment agency.

Since AB X1 26, there have been several amendments and additions the provisions of Parts 1.8 and 1.85,
including among others, AB 1484 adopted in June 2012 and SB 107, adopted in September 2016, after the
audited period of these financial statements. Parts 1.8 and 1.85, as amended and supplemented, are
referred to below as the “Dissolution Act.”

Pursuant to the Dissolution Act, the city which formed a redevelopment agency serves as the successor
agency unless the city elects to do otherwise.

On August 29, 2011, the City Council of the City of Artesia adopted Resolution No. 11-2299 electing for the
City to serve as the Successor Agency. The Dissolution Act specifies that the City and the Successor Agency
do not merge as the result of this election. The City and Successor Agency are separate legal entities. The
liabilities of the Former RDA (and the Successor Agency) do not transfer to the City and the assets of the
Successor Agency do not become the assets of the City.

The role of the successor agencies is to administer the wind down of each Dissolved RDA which includes
making payments due on enforceable obligations, disposing of the assets (other than housing assets).

The Dissolution Act also created an oversight board for each successor agency. The Dissolution Act

requires that certain successor agency actions are subject to the oversight board’s approval. The oversight
board may also direct the successor agency to take certain actions.
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11. RECENT CHANGES IN LEGISLATION AFFECTING CALIFORNIA REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCIES, Continued

The Dissolution Act allowed the sponsoring community that formed the Dissolved RDA to elect to assume
the housing functions and take over the certain housing assets of the Dissolved RDA. If the sponsoring
community does not elect to become the Successor Housing Agency and assume the Dissolved RDA’s
housing functions, such housing functions and all related housing assets will be transferred to the local
housing authority in the jurisdiction. On February 13, 2012, the City Council of the City of Artesia, adopted
Resolution No. 12-2316 electing for the City not to serve as the Housing Successor and determined that the
housing functions of the Former RDA shall be transferred to the Artesia Housing Authority pursuant to the
Dissolution Act.

The housing assets, obligations, and activities of the Dissolved RDA have been transferred and are reported
in the Housing Authority Special Revenue Fund in the financial statements of the City. All other assets,
obligations, and activities of the Dissolved RDA have been transferred and are reported in a fiduciary fund
(private-purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the City.

The Dissolution Act also establish roles for the County Auditor-Controller, the California Department of
Finance (the “DOF”) and the California State Controller’s office in the dissolution process and the
satisfaction of enforceable obligations of the Dissolved RDAs.

The County Auditor-Controller is charged with establishing a Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (the
“RPTTF”) for each Successor Agency and depositing into the RPTTF the amount of property taxes that
would have been redevelopment property tax increment had the Dissolved RDA not been dissolved.
Moneys in the RPTTF, after payment of certain administrative costs of the County, are disbursed twice a
year (January 2 and June 1, respectively) to pay: (i) the taxing entities for pass-through payments, (ii) the
Successor Agency for payments of enforceable obligations on the Successor Agency’s Recognized
Obligation Payment Schedule (“ROPS”) as approved by the DOF (discussed below), (iii) the Successor
Agency for its administrative cost allowance, as defined and up to the amount allowed by the Dissolution
Act, and (iv) the taxing entities to the extent that there is any residual amount remaining in the RPTTF after
application based on the foregoing.

The Successor Agency is required to prepare a ROPS approved by the oversight board setting forth the
amounts due for each enforceable obligation during each fiscal period covered by such ROPS. The ROPS is
submitted to the DOF for approval. The County Auditor-Controller will make payments to the Successor
Agency from the RPTTF fund based on the ROPS amount approved by the DOF. Through fiscal
year 2015-16, each ROPS covered a six-month period (commencing January 1 and July 1, respectively).
SB 107, which was enacted in September 2016, provides that, beginning with fiscal year 2016-17, the
Successor Agency must prepare a ROPS annually (instead of twice a year).

The Dissolution Act required the Successor Agency to have due diligence reviews of both the low and
moderate income housing fund and all other funds to be completed by October 15, 2012 and
January 15,2013 to compute the funds (cash) which were not needed by the Successor Agency to be
retained to pay for existing enforceable obligations. These unencumbered cash amounts were to be remitted
to the CAC after the DOF completed its review of the due diligence reviews. The former redevelopment
agency (Successor Agency) made payments totaling $538,184 during fiscal year 2012-13 to the CAC as a
result of the due diligence reviews.
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11. RECENT CHANGES IN LEGISLATION AFFECTING CALIFORNIA REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCIES, Continued

The DOF issued a Finding of Completion on April 18, 2013 in which DOF concurred that the Successor
Agency has made full payments of any payments required as a result of the due diligence reviews. After
receiving the Finding of Completion, the Successor Agency is allowed to place loan agreements between the
former redevelopment agency and the City on the ROPS, as an enforceable obligation, provided the
oversight board makes a finding that the loan was for legitimate redevelopment purposes. The Successor
Agency does not have any such outstanding loan repayable to the City. It should be noted that, however,
during any ROPS period, the City may loan funds to the Successor Agency for the payment of
administrative costs or enforceable obligations, subject to the limitations set forth in the Dissolution Act.
The Dissolution Act also provides that, after the Successor Agency’s receipt of the Finding of Completion,
the Successor Agency may use unspent proceeds from bonds issued by the Dissolved RDA before
January 1, 2011 on projects, in a manner consistent with original bond covenants. With the Oversight Board
and the DOF’s approval, the Successor Agency and the City have entered into agreements (the “Bond
Proceeds Funding Agreements”), pursuant which the Successor Agency agreed to transfer bond proceeds to
the City, for the City’s use (including reimbursement for any City advances therefore) to complete work
with respect to specified projects in a manner consistent with the bond covenants. During the year ended
June 30, 2015, the Successor Agency transferred $183,881 of bond proceeds to the City pursuant to the Bond
Proceeds Funding Agreements.

In addition, the Oversight Board approved the Successor Agency’s Long Range Property Management
Program (LRPMP) through resolution OB 13-20 on March 28, 2013, which was then approved by the DOF
on March 7, 2015. The LRPMP included certain real properties originally purchased with funds of the
Dissolved RDA, but were owned by the City. In its March 7, 2015 letter approving the LPRMP, the DOF
recognized that the City is the fee title holder of these real properties. The DOF noted that the Successor
Agency did not need to include such properties on the LRPMP, because the Successor Agency did not own
any interest in such properties. Accordingly, the amount associated with these properties, $5,329,406, is
now shown as the City’s assets. This was reflected as a transfer of $2,033,445 from the Successor Agency’s
assets to the City’s assets, in fiscal year 2013-2014, and a prior period adjustment of $3,295,961, in fiscal
year 2014-2015.

The State Controller of the State of California has been directed to review the transfers of assets between
Dissolved RDA and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011. If the public body that received
such transfers is not contractually committed to a third party for the expenditure or encumbrance of those
assets, the State Controller is required to order the assets to be returned to the successor agency to the extent
not prohibited by state or federal law. The State Controller issued its official final report regarding
unallowed asset transfers, by the Dissolved RDA to other public agencies on November 26, 2014. The
report did not identify any unallowable transfers.
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12. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES

The assets and liabilities of the former Redevelopment Agency were transferred to the Successor Agency to
the City of Artesia Redevelopment Agency on February 1, 2012 as a result of the dissolution of the former
Redevelopment Agency. The City is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the assets and liabilities. Disclosures
related to these transactions are as follows:

Capital Assets

There were no capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Balance at Balance at Due Within
July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions Tune 30, 2016 One Year
2007 Tax Allocation Bonds $ 11,800,000 5 - 8 (205,000) $ 11,595,000 $ 215,000
Less: Issuance discounts (223,456) 8,150 (215,306) {8,150)
2009 Housing Tax Allocation Bonds 3,315,000 {30,000) 3,285,000 30,000
Total long-term debt $ 14891544 $ - $ (226,850) $ 14,664,694 § 236,850

2007 Tax Allocation Bonds

On December 5, 2007, the Agency issued $12,920,000 in Tax Allocation Bonds for the purpose of financing
certain redevelopment activities benefiting the Artesia Redevelopment Project Area in the City. The bonds
mature annually on June 1, from 2008 to 2042, in amounts ranging from $115,000 to $600,000. $854,574 1s
maintained in a reserve account that meets conditions as set forth in the Bond Indenture. The principal
balance outstanding at June 30, 2016 was $11,595,000.

Original bond issuance discount on the bonds was $285,264, and the unamortized balance of the discount as
of June 30, 2016 was $215,306.

The 2007 Tax Allocation Bonds are payable solely from taxes received by the Successor Agency on behalf of

the former Redevelopment Agency. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds was
$22,129,118. Principal and interest paid for the current year was $851,925.
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12. SUCCESSOR AGENCY DISCLOSURES, Continued
Long-Term Liabilities, Continued

The annual requirements to amortize the 2007 Tax Allocation Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2016, are as
follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 215,000 $ 636,790 $ 851,790
2018 225,000 626,020 851,020
2019 240,000 614,555 854,555
2020 250,000 602,135 852,135
2021 260,000 589,215 849,215
2022 - 2026 1,530,000 2,720,585 4,250,585
2027 - 2031 1,205,000 2,251,888 4,256,888
2032 - 2036 2,625,000 1,631,145 4,256,145
2037 - 2041 3,440,000 817,100 4,257,100
2042 805,000 44,685 849,685
Totals $ 11,595,000 $ 10,534,118 $ 22,129,118

2009 Tax Allocation Bonds

On June 30, 2009, the Agency issued $3,470,000 in Housing Tax Allocation Bonds for the purpose of
financing low and moderate income housing projects of the Agency. The bonds mature annually on June 1,
from 2012 to 2046, in amounts ranging from $40,000 to $265,000. Interest is payable semiannually on June 1
and December 1, with a yield of 7.70%. $286,030 is maintained in a reserve account that meets conditions as
set forth in the Bond Indenture. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2016 was $3,285,000.

The 2009 Tax Allocation Bonds are payable solely from the taxes received by the Successor Agency on
behalf of the former Redevelopment Agency. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the
bonds is $8,502,135. Principal and interest paid for the current year was $285,255.

The annual requirements to amortize the 2009 Housing Tax Allocation Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2016,
are as follows:

Year Ending
Tune 30, Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 30,000 $ 252,945 $ 282,945
2018 35,000 250,635 285,635
2019 35,000 247,940 282,940
2020 40,000 245,245 285,245
2021 40,000 242,165 282,165
2022 - 2026 260,000 1,158,080 1,418,080
2027 - 2031 375,000 1,041,425 1,416,425
2032 - 2036 545,000 872,795 1,417,795
2037 - 2041 785,000 629,090 1,414,090
2042 - 2046 1,140,000 276,815 1,416,815
Totals $ 3,285,000 3 5,217,135 $ 8,502,135
Rebatable Arbitrage

The Successor Agency is obligated to calculate arbitrage rebates on all tax allocation bonds. At June 30, 2016,
there was no rebatable arbitrage liability.
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14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. Lawsuits

The City is presently involved in certain matters of litigation that have arisen in the normal course of
conducting City business. City management believes that these cases, in the aggregate, are not expected to
result in a material adverse financial impact on the City with the exception of the case noted below.
Additionally, City management believes that the City’s insurance programs are sufficient to cover any
potential losses should an unfavorable outcome materialize.

A lawsuit is currently pending against the City entitled Herrera, et al v. City of Artesia. The lawsuit
involves claims for City payment of a portion of medical insurance costs for certain former employees and
their dependents. The potential liability and loss to the City in the event of court decision adverse to the
City in the lawsuit is unknown at this time.

B. Federal and State Grant Programs

The City has received Federal and State grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by
the respective governments. Although such audits could result in expenditure disallowance under grant
terms, any required reimbursements are not expected to be material.

C. Commiltiments

As of June 30, 2016, the City did not have any commitments and, in the opinion of City management, there
were no additional outstanding matters that would have a significant effect on the financial position of the

funds of the City.
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CITY OF ARTESIA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2016

Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plans

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.06597% 0.08779%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 1,900,640 $ 2,169,712
Covered-employee payroll $ 1437066 $ 1,562,635

Proportionate Share of the net pension hability

as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 132.25% 138.85%
Plan's fiduciary net position $ 10661524 $§ 10,323,534
Plan's total pension liability $ 12,562,164 $ 12,493,246

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
total pension liability 84.87% 82.63%

Notes to Schedule

Change in Benefit Terms: The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted
from plan changes which occurred after June 30, 2013 as they have minimal cost impact. This applies for
voluntary benefit changes as well as any offers of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a Golden
Handshakes).

Change in Assumptions: Discount rate has changed to 7.65%.

*Fiscal year 2015 was the 1% year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.
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JUNE 30,2016

Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plans

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Contractual required contribution (actuarially

determined) $ 102,746  $ 122,602
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contributions (102,746) (122,602)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ -
Covered employee payroll $ 1437166 $ 1,562,635

Contributions as a percentage of covered

employee payroll 7.15% 7.85%
Notes to Schedule
Valuation Date: June 30, 2014

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll
Asset Valuation Method Market Value

Inflation 2.75%

3.30% to 14.20% depending on age,
service, and type of employment
7.50%, net of pension plan investment
Investment Rate of Return and administrative Expenses; includes
Inflation
Derived using CalPERS' Membership
Data for all Funds

Salary Increases

Mortality Rate Table W

(DThe mortality table was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 20 years of
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table, please refer
to the 2014 experience study report.

*Fiscal year 2015 was the 1* year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.
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Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan

Unfunded
Accrued
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Annual UAALasa
Valuation Value of (Excess Unfunded AAL.  Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Assets) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
7/12009 § - $ 4870630 $ 4,870,630 0% $ 1,380,343 352.9%
7/1/2012 4,781,131 4,781,131 0% 1,380,343 346.4%
7/1/2015 5,696,832 5,696,832 0% 1,437,166 396.4%
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1. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The City Council has the responsibility for adoption of the City’s budget. Budgets are adopted for
governmental funds. From the effective date of the budget, the City Manager is authorized to transfer
funds from one major expenditure category to another within the same department. Any revisions that
alter the total expenditures of any department must be approved by the City Council.

All appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year to the extent that they have not been expended. Lease
contracts entered into by the City are subject to annual review by the City Council; hence, they legally are

one year contracts with an option to renew for another fiscal year.

Budget accounts reported for the governmental funds of the City are adopted on a basis consistent with
GAAP.

General Budget Policies

The City Council approves each year's budget submitted by the City Manager prior to the beginning of the
new fiscal year. The Council conducts public meetings prior to its adoption. The budget is prepared by
fund, function and activity and includes information on the past year, current year estimates and requested
appropriations for the next fiscal year. Supplemental appropriations, when required during the period, are
also approved by the Council. Intradepartmental budget changes are approved by the City Manager.
Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at the departmental level. At fiscal year-end, all operating
budget appropriations lapse. During the year, several supplementary appropriations were necessary.

The City did not adopt a budget for the following Non-major Governmental Special Revenue Funds:
(a) Federal STP-L, (b) Hi-Tech Grant, (c) Sheriff, (d) Community Development Block Grant, or (e) MAP 21
Exchange.
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City of Artesia

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 9,628,333 $ 9,628,333 $ 9,628,333 $ -
Resources (inflows):
Taxes 5,542,770 5,542,770 7,903,218 2,360,448
Licenses and permits 316,000 316,000 542,950 226,950
Intergovernmental 791,675 791,675 850,058 58,383
Charges for services 208,914 208,914 637,831 428,917
Use of money and property 316,468 316,468 455,695 139,227
Fines and forfeitures 48,083 48,083 40,883 (7,200)
Developer fees 132,200 132,200 58,606 (73,594)
Other revenues 117,250 117,250 7,161 (110,089)
Transfers in 434,000 434,000 127,392 (306,608)
Amount available for appropriation 7,907,360 7,907,360 10,623,794 2,716,434
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
General government:
City council 201,682 201,682 196,956 4,726
City attorney 189,044 189,044 567,117 (378,073)
City manager 408,261 408,261 502,547 (94,286)
General operations 292,639 (292,639)
Human Resources/risk management 196,492 196,492 166,985 29,507
Business taxes & permits 33,479 33,479 34,583 (1,104)
City Clerk/Treasurer 238,757 238,757 168,461 70,296
Administrative servixes 692,360 692,360 410411 281,949
Total general government 1,960,075 1,960,075 2,339,699 {379,624)
Public safety 3,027,931 3,027,931 3,049,294 (21,363)
Parks and recreation:
Community promotion 165,548 165,548 136,558 28,990
Parks/recreation 855,460 855,460 838,268 17,192
Park commission 225 225 116 109
Total parks and recreation 1,021,233 1,021,233 974,942 46,291
Maintenance:
Building and safety 270,000 270,000 289,707 (19,707)
Maintenance 542,041 542,041 593,087 (51,046)
Public works 41,781 41,781 41,781
Storm Water Management 159,628 159,628 62,514 97,114
Beautification commission 1,675 1,675 300 1,375
City engineer 1,600 1,600 1,600
Total public works 1,016,725 1,016,725 945,608 71,117

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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City of Artesia

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund, Continued

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Charges to appropriations (outflows)
(continued):
Community development:
Planning $ 404,061 $ 404,061 $ 320,612 $ 83,449
Planning commission 3,825 3,825 3,325 500
Economic Developmemt 216,031 216,031 61,437 154,594
Total community development 623,917 623,917 385,374 238,543
Transfers out 3,542,465 (3,542,465)
Total charges to appropriations 7,649,881 7,649,881 11,237,382 (3,587,501)
Excess of resources over
charges to appropriations 257,479 257,479 (613,588) (871,067)
Fund balance, June 30 $ 9,885,812 $ 9,885,812 $ 9,014,745 $ (871,067)

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts {(Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ (142,976)  $ (142,976)  § (142,976)  § -
Resources (inflows):

Charges for Services 25,000 25,000 25,362 362

Use of Money and Property ) 3,670 3,670 4,189 519

Transfer in 3,504,933 3,504,933
Amount available for appropriation 28,670 28,670 3,534,484 3,505,814

Charges to appropriations (outflows):

Capital outlay 2,640,648 (2,640,648)
Total charges to appropriations 2,640,648 (2,640,648)
Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations 28,670 28,670 893,836 865,166
Fund balance, June 30 $ (114,306) & (114306) $ 750,860  § 865,166
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NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

State Gas Tax - To account for any street or road purpose including maintenance and construction,
engineering and administration apportioned under the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California.

Parks and Recreation Grants - To receive grant funds used to update and make park improvements not
accounted in other funds.

Federal STP-L - To account for leftover County exchange of STPL monies for street related projects.

Hazard and Litigation - is a special revenue fund and accounts for grant funding of Federal awarded highway
transportation and safety improvement projects.

LACMTA - is a special revenue fund and accounts for the revenues and expenditures associated with the CML-
5355 (023) South Street pedestrian and transit improvement project.

Proposition A - To account for the benefit of public transit such as dial-a-ride and recreation transportation
programs.

Proposition C - To account for the benefit of public transit with expanded street maintenance and
improvements such as traffic signal, marking and striping, median maintenance and matching dollars for
street improvement grants.

Air Quality - To account for AB2766 Subvention Program funds to implement programs that reduce air
pollution from motor vehicles.

California Beverage Recycling - To account for funds awarded by State to provide litter/recycling clean-up,
education and community outreach.

Artesia Lighting District - To account for property tax direct assessments used for maintenance, operation,
and repair of street lights and signal expenditures.

Community Development Block Grant - To account for revenues and expenditures under the US.
Department of Housing and Urban Development’s Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program.

Billboard - To account for city license fee on development agreement for 15 annual installments of
double-sided Outdoor Advertising structure.
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NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

MAP 21 Exchange - An exchange of City available Federal Surface Transportation Program-Local Funds
(STP-L Funds) for like amount of Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA
Funds). These are flexible funds for transportation capital improvements that would normally qualify for the
STP-L program.

Hi-Tech Grant - To account for a one-time funding used for the enhancement of law enforcement programs
and equipment.

Sheriff - To account for the forfeiture and seizure assets collected in the City of Artesia by the contract policing
agency and primarily used for law enforcement equipment and training.

C.O.P.S. Grant - To account for supplemental law enforcement services funding of frontline law enforcement
and juvenile justice programs.

Measure R - To account for the engineering, administrative, traffic median, and parking overflow
improvements of transportation services.

Housing Authority - To account for the maintenance, planning, and improvements of all low-moderate
income housing assets to assist low and moderate income housing families and seniors.

Paid Parking - To account for city parking lot improvements, preferential parking permits, parking pay
station income and related expenses of the parking program in and near the downtown business district.

Safe Route to School - To account for state awarded school traffic safety grants used for outreach to schools,
public awareness programs, and sometimes infrastructure or equipment to facilitate safe routes to schools.
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

State Gas Tax
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Fund balance, July 1

Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Other

Amount available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public Works
Capital outlay
Transfer Out

Total charges to appropriations

Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations

Fund balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts {Negative)

749,748 3 749,748 3 749,748  § -
386,848 386,848 322,362 (64,486)

1,000 1,000 1,993 993

4,500 4,500 5,524 1,024
392,348 392,348 329,879 (62,469)

396,020 396,020 350,652 45,368

12,500 12,500 927 11,573
615,000 {615,000)
408,520 408,520 966,579 (558,059)
(16,172) (16,172) (636,700) (620,528)
733,576 $ 733,576 $ 113,048  § (620,528)
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Federal STP-L
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Fund balance, July 1

Resources (inflows):
Use of money and property

Amount available for appropriation

Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations

Fund balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts {(Negative)

58,614 $ 58,614 $ 58,614

250 250 251

250 250 251

250 250 251
58,864 $ 58,864 $ 58,865  §
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Proposition A

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 436,867 $ 436,867 $ 436,867 $ -
Resources (inflows):

Taxes 273,000 273,000 302,811 29,811

Intergovernmental 5,600 5,600 (5.,600)

Use of money and property 500 500 2,146 1,646
Amount available for appropriation 279,100 279,100 304,957 25,857

Charges to appropriations (outflows):

Parks and recreation 279,100 279,100 175,168 103,932
Total charges to appropriations 279,100 279,100 175,168 103,932
Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations 129,789 129,789
Fund balance, June 30 $ 436,867 $ 436,867 $ 566,656 % 129,789
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

LACMTA
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Fund balance, July 1

Resources (inflows):

Intergovernmental

Amount available for appropriation

Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations

Fund balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts {(Negative)

$ (244389) $ (244,389) % (244,389) $

244,389 244,389 244,389

244,389 244,389 244,389

244,389 244,389 244,389
$ - § - $ -8
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Parks & Recreation Grants
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Fund balance, July 1

Resources {inflows):
Intergovernmental

Amount available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Capital outlay
Transfers out

Total charges to appropriations

Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations

Fund balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
- - $ -8 -
47,000 47,000 47,600
47,000 47,000 47,000
44,864 (44,864)
47,000 (47,000)
91,864 (91,864)
47,000 47,000 (44,864) (91,864)
47,000 47,000 $ (44,864) § (91,864)
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Proposition C

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 165,639 $ 165,639 $ 165,639  § -
Resources (inflows):
Taxes 235,000 235,000 251,431 16,431
Use of money and property 100 100 918 818
Amount available for appropriation 235,100 235,100 252,349 17,249
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public works 59,900 59,900 67,143 (7,243)
Capital outlay 175,200 175,200 125,220 49,980
Total charges to appropriations 235,100 235,100 192,363 42,737
Excess of resources over (under)
charges to appropriations 59,986 59,986
Fund balance, June 30 $ 165,639 $ 165,639 $ 225,625 $ 59,986
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Air Quality
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Fund balance, July 1

Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental

Use of money and property

Amount available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public works
Capital outlay
Transfer out

Total charges to appropriations

Excess of resources over (under)
charges to appropriations

Fund balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
118,451 $ 118,451 $ 118,451 $ -
20,000 20,000 21,332 1,332
200 200 522 322
20,200 20,200 21,854 1,654
9,500 9,500 3,259 6,241
60,500 60,500 60,500
32,000 32,000 32,738 (738)
102,000 102,000 35,997 66,003
(81,800) (81,800) (14,143) 67,657
36,651 $ 36,651 $ 104,308  § 67,657
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Hazard & Litigation Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Fund balance, July 1

Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental
Transfers in

Amount available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Capital outlay

Total charges to appropriations

Excess of resources over (under)
charges to appropriations

Fund balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ (316,547) § (316,547) % (316,547) § -
288,000 288,000 588,526 300,526

32,000 32,000 647,738 615,738

320,000 320,000 1,236,264 916,264

320,000 320,000 358,345 (38,345)
320,000 320,000 358,345 (38,345)

877,919 877,919

$ 316,547y  § (316,547)  $ 561,372 $ 877,919
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
California Beverage Recycling

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 30,606 $ 30,606 $ 30,606 § -
Resources (inflows):

Intergovernmental 5,000 5,000 5,000

Use of money and property 60 60 136 76
Amount available for appropriation 5,060 5,060 5,136 76

Charges to appropriations (outflows):

General government 5,060 5,060 5,273 (213)
Total charges to appropriations 5,060 5,060 5,273 (213)
Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations (137) (137)
Fund balance, June 30 $ 30,606 $ 30,606 $ 30469 $ (137)
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Artesia Lighting District

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts {(Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Resources (inflows):

Taxes 138,115 138,115 138,845 730

Transfers in 27,585 27,585 37,532 9,947
Amount available for appropriation 165,700 165,700 176,377 10,677

Charges to appropriations (outflows):

Community development 165,700 165,700 192,853 (27,153)
Total charges to appropriations 165,700 165,700 192,853 (27,153)
Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations (16,476) (16,476)
Fund balance, June 30 $ - 8 -8 (16476)  $ (16,476)
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Paid Parking

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Fund balance, July 1

Resources (inflows):
Charges for services
Use of money and property

Amount available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public safety
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total charges to appropriations

Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations

Fund balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 381,950 $ 381,950 $ 381,950 $ -
416,104 416,104 383,095 (33,009)
2,111 2,111
416,104 416,104 385,206 (30,898)
193,586 193,586 143,370 50,216
50,476 50,476 50,476
9,380 9,380 15,228 (5,848)
253,442 253,442 209,074 44,368
162,662 162,662 176,132 13,470
544,612 544,612 $ 558,082  § 13,470
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Billboard
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Fund balance, July 1

Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental

Use of money and property

Amount available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Transfers out

Total charges to appropriations

Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations

Fund balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
80,160 80,160 80,160

257 257

80,160 80,160 80,417 257
80,160 80,160 80,392 (232)
80,160 80,160 80,392 (232)

25 25

- - 25 25
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

C.O.P.S. Grant
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Fund balance, July 1

Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property

Amount available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public safety

Total charges to appropriations

Excess of resources over (under)
charges to appropriations

Fund balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

159 159 $ 159§ -

100,000 100,000 143,942 43,942

331 331

100,000 100,000 144,273 44,273
100,000 100,000 144,401 (44,401)
100,000 100,000 144,401 (44,401)
(128) (128)
159 159 $ 31 $ (128)
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

SAFE Route to School
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Fund balance, July 1

Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Capital Outlay

Total charges to appropriations

Excess of resources over (under)
charges to appropriations

Fund balance, June 30

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ (11,975) § 11,975y  § (11,975) § -
1,500 1,500 1,514 (14)
1,500 1,500 1,514 (14)
(1,500) (1,500) (1,514) (14)
$ (13,475)  § (13,475) $ (13,489) 8 (14)
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Measure R

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 424157  § 424,157 $ 424157  § -
Resources (inflows):
Taxes 170,000 170,000 188,494 18,494
Use of money and property 1,273 1,273
Amount available for appropriation 170,000 170,000 189,767 19,767
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public works 6,142 6,142 1,000 5,142
Capital outlay 163,858 163,858 548,921 (385,063)
Total charges to appropriations 170,000 170,000 549,921 (379,921)
Excess of resources over (under)
charges to appropriations (360,154) (360,154)
Fund balance, June 30 % 424,157 $ 424157 $ 64,003 3 (360,154)
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City of Artesia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Housing Authority

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive/
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Fund balance, July 1 $ 224,489 $ 224,489 $ 224,489 $ -
Resources (inflows):

Use of money and property 71,770 71,770 78,212 6,442

Amount available for appropriation 71,770 71,770 78,212 6,442
Charges to appropriations (outflows):

Community development 86,789 86,789 393 86,396
Total charges to appropriations 86,789 86,789 393 86,396
Excess of resources over (under)

charges to appropriations (15,019) (15,019) 77,819 92,838
Fund balance, June 30 $ 209,470 $ 209,470 $ 302,308 $ 92,838
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AGENCY FUNDS

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City as trustee or agent for individuals, private
orgardzaﬁons, or other governmental units or funds.

Trust and Agency - To account for funds collected and disbursed by the City for various programs.

George Nelson Memorial - To account for funds collected and disbursed by the City on behalf of the family
of George Nelson for parks and recreation programs.

Senior Citizens - To account for funds collected and disbursed by the City on behalf of the Senior Citizen
activities and programs.
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City of Artesia

Combining Balance Sheet

All Agency Funds
June 30, 2016
Trustand George Nelson Senior
Agency Memorial Citizens Total
ASSETS

Cash and investments $ 419,123 $ 2,425 $ 7,071 $ 428,619
Accounts receivable 14,137 14,137
Total assets $ 433,260 $ 2,425 $ 7,071 $ 442,756

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 59,819 $ - $ - $ 59,819
Deposits payable 373,441 2425 7,071 382,937
Total liabilities $ 433,260 $ 2,425 $ 7,071 $ 442,756

107



City of Artesia

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Balance Balance
July 1, 2015 Addition Deductions June 30, 2016
Trust and Agency

Assets:

Cash and investments $ 326,134 % 239,943 146,954 419,123

Accounts receivable 9,333 14,137 9,333 14,137
Total assets $ 335467 5 254,080 156,287 433,260

Liabilities:

Account payable $ 38,748 $ 59,819 38,748 59,819

Deposits payable 296,719 194,261 117,539 373,441
Total liabilities $ 335467 $ 254,080 156,287 433,260

George Nelson Memorial

Assets:

Cash and investments 2,425 - - 2,425
Total assets 2,425 - - 2,425

Liabilities:

Deposits payable 2,425 - - 2,425
Total liabilities 2,425 $ - - 2,425

Senior Citizens

Assets:

Cash and investments 7,071 - - 7,071
Total assets $ 7,071 - - 7,071

Liabilities:

Deposits payable 7,071 - - 7,071
Total liabilities 7,071 - - 7,071

Totals - All Agency Funds

Assets:

Cash and investments $ 335,630 $ 239,943 146,954 428,619

Accounts receivable 9,333 14,137 9,333 14,137
Total assets $ 344,963 3 254,080 156,287 442,756

Liabilities:

Account payable $ 38,748 $ 59,819 38,748 59,819

Deposits payable 306,215 194,261 117,539 382,937
Total liabilities 3 344,963 $ 254,080 156,287 442,756
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)
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DESCRIPTION OF STATISTICAL
SECTION CONTENTS

June 30, 2016

This part of the City of Artesia’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information say about the government’s overall financial health.

Contents: Pages
Financial Trends theses schedules contain trend information to help the reader

understand how the City’s financial performance and well-being have changed over
time. 113

Revenue Capacity these schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
City’s most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 120

Debt Capacity these schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to
issue additional debt in the future. 125

Demographic and Economic Information these schedules offer demographic and
economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which
the City’s financial activities take place. 129

Operating Information these schedules contain service and infrastructure data to
help the reader understand how the information in the City’s financial report relates
to the services the City provides and the activities it performs. 131

111



This page intentionally left blank

112



1251

pajousasun-uotsod 10U (210 pajornsas-uosod 191 {el0 ], » 1GOp PaIE}as JO 19U “Sjasse [eNdes Ut paisIAn! [BI0] @

e - o (000°000°S1$)
e (000°000°01$)
(000°000°5$)
0%
000°000°%
000°000°01%
000°000°51$
000°000°0£$

TOTBYS0L §  €98WTOST $  69COLYOT §  OL6SL6LI §  STYTIE9l §  ICesv6rl S GOVESI6l  § OTOOIEOl  §  SIL'S6§°91 §  evbeLe’sl SISSE U [£10],
01L°618% L81°099 TrL1SE9 80v'TTS'l SLY'L8T'1 (reg'ozL'in) eI (cov'sszh) {ELSE0L') 8E°066°¢ PaRLsaIf)
088'7£0'C LE6ISTY 068°TTI'C 657'98L° SE1°2T8 052°699°C1 869°TLL'31 YLE'66T LI 199°¢68°1 $61°061°C paRLIsay
TI9E66'ST §  GELTITIT §  LETOSL §  €0IL99%I S SISL6YEl §  SOL'C00PI §  SIITOOTL §  SLITOUL §  LTIC0K6  §  006T6EG  §  IA9P PAw[OIJO 10U 'Siosse eideo u paisaau]

$)SS8 JoU [B)0 ],

§T1'96 §  LOT¥E $ - $ - $ - [3 - [3 - 3 - $ - $ - 3 sjasse Jau sanianoe adA1-ssauisng (810,
ST1'9S $  LOT'PE $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ pajoLnsalufy
soptanoe adAy-ssouisng
LLOT6L0S $§  9S9°066LC S  69TOLYOL $  OL6'SL6LI $  SCHTIE9l §  (Zesy6bl $§  16LTZ8%1  §  9T091E9T §  SIL'S6S'91 §  epv'els'sl § uonisod 19U SANIANDE [RIUAILLIDACS [EI0],
S86°E9L'Y 086'S79 THL1SE9 80v°CTS'1 SLY'L8T'] o 0TL L) (pre 1zt (cor's8sTI) (€LS°€0L'8) BE066'C paroLIsaIUf)
088%€0°C LEG'IST9 068°T21'T 65Y'98L°1 SEI°LTEY 052'$99°21 0Z0'THF'p1 FLEGOT LI 199°¢68°S1 $61°061°C pajonsay

TI9'E66'ST §  6ELTITIT §  LE9100%T §  €0I°L99%1 $  SISLEY'El § SOLE00PT §  SII'TOS'IE §  SII'TO9NEL §  Lz9'sov's  §  006C6E'6  § 199p pale}al JO 1u s1asse [eyded Ul paisaau]
SIALIOE [BIUIMUIIA0Y)

9107 S10T 10T £10T (4114 110T 010¢ 600T 800T L00T
12X 88ty

(Sununoooe Jo siseq [enione)
sIga A [eosl,] ua], 1se]
juauoduto)) Aq uonisod 19N
VINJOJITVD ‘VISHLUV 40 ALID



yIl

(ponunuo))
618°5TE6 $ET'668°9 LLEYTY9 £25°492'9 #95'889'9 £38°80¢'L 00E°LLE"Y $05°08L'L 609°C9¥'L LYSTESHD
98971 L06°0L $86'€T1 61ESIT 91279 SEYOL Praalig] 5166 060'0¢ €30°LE1
LEO'RYS P60'9EY TLE'SEE TET'9EC LLI'I8Y TOLSEY 965°09S 8¥6°LS LTE'C8E 190°897
BGLS 91Z°L OLY'L 9706 11L°8 - - - - h
N - - - - L96LYT SEEEEl 108°¢l! pESOL 0LY'TEL
£64°T61 925°¢91 L80°C6 0S+'621 L3s'eCt SETH91 L8L°6¥1 LLIEYT 0£€'7T 86€°79
695"81S 8L9°6LY L10'9bY FH6'STY SLO'EIE wTiose 19¢'p¢€ 0LL'TSE TLY'STY 65t°61F
T19'969°T 9Z6°L0¥ 109'06€ £48'69¢€ $69°69¢ L3I'ELE 01T'64E 9IL'EFE 129°01€ 8L1°60€
OrE8E0°'e 979°960'€ L98'3€6'T 3SE6TLT POL'LSS'T 162°LEV'T 1L8E11T SP6°091°C SIT'8E9°C SHO'LSY'T
881°¢SS PTISEs ety $EEOSH S0£'9T $£°99€ LTYPST $95°07T 0SL'TYT 6L8°0L1
96L'8LLL S LS1°869°1 85TSHo't $  L10°109°1 S t86'SPET LTYELO'E $  P8T196T §  IerLy'e $ 0Lgieg’e $  peroLre
(081°225'9) g (9€€°L0L°S) SHY'EEL'T S (186°009't) $  (1L7'986'S) (LSE'€8T'L) § (5e5°0LY'8) $  (£61°090'8) s (Lee1vr9) §  (Ls'syTs)
F16°058'¢ $  UYSEY SHEE6E 1T §  £95°L6S'Y $  IELLSE TLL'YOS'E §  £61°016°¢ $  GILTLYE §  pes8ely §  LECEROS
$8L°86¢ 0Y9°6£6 - - - - - - - -
$8L86€ 09°6£6 - - - - - - - -
9TITSH'E $8LPIT'E 8HEC6E LT £9°L6S FCELLY'E TLL'GOS'E £51°015°€ 69L°TLY'E ¥65'8EL'Y LEC'EHO'S
188°¢81 991'C79"Y - - - $$0°001 61€78 000°081 TIE'8SS
00 €9LL PSYLLOT S6L°6LYT 80£°SL8°C 0£6°L21°T 06¥°S16°1 £68°THS1 951°¢08°1 8E6°12T°t 866°0¥8°1
9098 0LY'LY - - - - - - - -
915°THT 197°05t €95°90T°1 £12100'1 192°056 LES'VO6 SL1°688 969116 0SL°€SS 1 18€°L0€°t
£10'PL 606'€9 86T EL 69405 [Svaily PE96Y 99L°9¢ #48'CS £Ob'SS LEL'ES
SRE'TOL $O0T1ES £91°12€ S£9°0TE €10°62¢ ££1°162 LLELIT LOS ILY LYELLT 08T'€5¢
90T'15S §  6v1°09 LSOP6Y §  8E6°6PE § 598y 8L6°SHE $  F68°LOY § LISy $ 951088 S 6£9'6T0'1
$60'€LE°01 S ¥9L190%01 £0L'65T°6 $  prS'3616 §  65°€98'6 621°06L°01 $  889'086°(1 $  96'TES 1T $ 1E6'6LS01 $  p98'88T'01
0L8°9LE ££F'506 - - - - - - - -
0/8°9LE £EH°506 - - - - - - - -
$TC966'6 1£€°951°6 €0L°65T°6 #9<°R61°6 $65'€98°6 671°06L°01 889°086°11 796'TES" T 1€6°6L5°01 £98°382°01
Er4a3 000°¢1 04891 L3Sy 679°€9S 161°6L6 $65'€96 687'699 TSO'PLE -
819°8L¢ 052'9T¢ 18¥°LLE 120°'82€ £65°F09 TIS'9H0't £ET9TH'l - - N
w%wcmﬁm LT809T°T 999°LEY' L98°829°1 TEY'ELL'L LOL'TIY 1S’ 6EL'6OF'] $29'8€8°1 LETOLY'L
176°852°t £68'984°1 0$7'890°1 9£8°99L 118689 TL6'TO9 GEL'606 126'608 60S°96L ¥£5'999
99¢°9LE°C 108112 119°L80°E 962°7T0°¢ 628'818°C 288'P10°E $09'6L8°C 60£°088°C 980°9¥1°¢ 1$8°608°C
£6L°8SY'T $ 009'L59t sz8'IEe's $  SE6TLYYE $  101'6StE 66L°LES'E §  LESOSO'Y S POL'LEL'S $  999'vTLY $ erues
910z S10T F10Z €107 T 1o 010Z 6002 8007 L00T

1805 [EST]

SOUALDE [RIUDWILINA0T (210,

ETS)

Kuadoid pue Louow Jo asp)
$50IXA UI UONIDI[OD DI} SIUIDY| D[DIIA JIOION

[EwIdA0TI0UL *NAY UL D[OIYDA J0JOIN

$9XE) 12O

SoXu} 95UDDY ssIUISHY

SOXE} ISIYIURIY
52XU) SO[BS

saxey Louednoso udisuel],
asodand jerouad 1oy parasg ‘soxe) Luadoig

goxR Y,
SINUIADL [RIFUIDY

asuadxo 10U 810,
annoada (suadxa) JoN
sonusadl wesdoid o],
sonuoanl wixfoud sanianoe adAi-ssousng Moy,
2STOY [EHUAPISY -~ SIIIAIDS 30} SaBIvYD)
sonanoe adK)-ssoutsngg
sanuaass wexford soniAnoe [EIBWILILACE [WI0]
suonnquinos pue siwerd jende)
suonngiIos pue sjueld Supeindo
juawidojoaap Siunuo)

SHIOM DI[qNg

HO1E31091 PUE SYIE]

Kigyes onqngd

wownA0d [RIoUSD)
1$901A108 10] SoTIeyD)
ISINIANOR [BIUDWUIIAOL)

sonudAdd weadea

sasuadxa {10,

sasuadxa sanianoe adAl-ssoutsng [B10 ],

251301 [RIUOPISDY

sanyanos adA-ssauisng
Sa5URAXD $DNALDE [RIUSWUINACT (10 ],
1q0p uLdI-3u0] 1o 152I9M]
juowdojaaap Ajununuo)

SyIoM dgng
UONEAIOAL PUR SYIBY

Kiages ajand
juowaAod jrioue)

ISINIATIOR [BIUDIULLIDAOL)

sasuadxzy

SIEO A [BISI UDL IS8

(Sununodoe Jo sISBQ [RIIIOT)

uoso 1N i sadunyy

VINYOAIIVO 'VISTLAY 40 ALD



i eidtusesod-uonisod 1ou vl dunyd a

9102 S10T ¥10T €10T T 1107 0107 600¢ 800C L00T

(000°000°€$)

(000°000'1%)

000°000°1%

000°000°€$

000°000°S$

TN 000'000°L$

000°000°6%

6£€°€78'C S  816°L81°t $  TT0'9sER S Tws'e99't $  ELTTOL §  0£5'5Tl §  (SeTesr’) §  (689'6L0) $  TLTW §  0¥0'80T'1 $ uoptsod 1au ut so3ueyd jrIo]
816°1T LOT'vE -

sananae adfi-ssauisngg
(689'6LT) $ LTI $  0v0'80T1 $ SOANOE [RIUSUHUIACD

uogisod jou uy aduey)

17+'108'C §  HILESH $  TTo'gss'e $  TPS'e99'l §  €LTT0L $  0€5'STL § (sez'eor'n) S

910t S10C P10z €10 fAlt 110z 010z 600T 8002 00T

2034 {ROSHY

(panunuo))
{Sununodoe Jo siseq junioor)
S1uR A [BOSL] US] I5ET]
uonisod 1N ut safuey)
VINUQAITVD VISHLYV 40 ALID



91t

SPURY RIELISA0S 410 JjE-5odurjeq pUR & puny jraaua-sasunjeq pun s

910¢ 10T $10C €ioT e 1oz 01T 600T 800C

08
000°000°5%
00000001
000°000'61$
000°000°0TS
TPULIEE 8 LITe6T 8 1096601 & LS3P0CT § LOCCEsy § C9P99TI §  LEV63TFL 5  LOGOI6OI S STPBLCSI §  SLOPRI'L §  Spuny jmuswiuioncd Jauio e (eio),
950°9L9 (L88°S1L) (68v'119) (098°80%) (8TT'CEs) (97£'86) paugisseup)
L¥8°0EL AR 06€YL 6L6'8Y poudissy
160'149°C  $  $OOLVOT § EPTE86'T §  ETYIINT §  SOTEGHT §  696'€19TI S polLsey
(08T'ssy) (ss8°z6L) pajeudisopun
POY'0r6 Spuny 931AIS 1G3(]
£69°901 (819°%) 067'59 £TYELT spuny syefoxd fende)
160856 60S°LLL 665°0Z5°1 652018 SpURj anUAARI Jet0ads
a1 patodal ‘paalasau()
OIS 9LIEL £1¥°TLO'9T 967°610°Y1 pareusitsacy
€EI'89  § €09°1L  § 0TS8L S LipE $ paalesoy
spunj jepuswInIsa0s a0pe v
CPLPI06 S ££08C96 S 6E6St08 §  SLLLSYE $ 836780 § OPCTI6E § ErLISIE § PE8TLEE $ OI69ILE §  8LELSEY § puny [e10ua3 [eI0),
661 7EVE Z5ELSS9 156361 £95°169°C £03°£00°€ pauBissetif)
0PT'$65°C 000°10¢ SLE9TE poudissy
000°00+9 9LY8TET 9TLSILT $99°48€°t SSSUIEL SSSIEL paNwwo)
££6'705"€ parLnsaY
S05°61 S STL6S $ 98y9p  §  LSS00€ S OLEGST $  888TLT  § sjqepuadsuoN
SOI'6L9°E yLI'B09'E pareudisapupy
120'0€6°T €0T°L9E'S PAAIBSOII[Y
WLITT  § 169 $ 118y § vOs6hL  $ poantasay
punj [BI0U0)
910z $107 107 €107 TioT 1102 0107 600C 300C £00T

(Sununoode Jo siseq (EnI20E paLjIpow)
S8 A [BOSH] Ua ] 15T
Spun,{ [BIUAWWIBA0D) JO SAoUT[RY punj
VINIOAI'TVD VISALYY JO ALD



L1

(panunuoD)
wWY'TLL 016°CIY'I SLY'ESE'S (o6L521) (38Tt (TI8'STe) (196°8¥8°2) (009°S€1°D) 6V6'LLL $TSLYS
LS F9S" T €S1°668°8 0P S62°01 $20°8L8°01 $EL°386° 11 LE6FI6 T POLSIS CI 8P0°LY6 €] £5€°¢18°01 LOO'SE0' LT

THLLS 701201 €Y7 T0E
8TTSI 000°¢1 0L8°01 L8S'Y £66°CLY 00LTS6 907°6£6 0v1°869 $TTTIE
9L¥08 968'9% £ev'cy LLEOT 000°0LT 000091 000°S11
0€L°T9L%E 8y €56 85£°600°C 1€1°819°1 1€L'0€h°€ 109°%12°T 698°180°¢ T61°70T°¢ SHOv8Y 769'70T°1
819°8LS 0$T9CS 18¥°LLE 120°82¢ ££5°€09 P69 vP01 SIPYTP'l
¥S0°TTY 9SL'ELE T 8€6°100°1 €86'7€T 1 F16°5¥6 967'800°1 0Z0°s81°1 ySPIES 61L°91¢°1 909°6TZ°1
T6T'S¥6
SYS ST 679SE'l 86126 £r6°019 010°LTS 06£°0¢S £08'7CL 8TY'TTL £9L°80L 916109
$90°LEE'E 6E0°TLTE 78€°€00°¢ LLY'686'C SIT1¥8'C SLL'LOS'T 6EL°6LLT 9L9°0¥8°C LOL900'E 06598L°T
195°LEET SLI'09%] 001°626°C S0S 180°t 8E991°¢ 185°980°¢ 0LEPITE 9G60°SEL’S 750°789Y €0T°TITS
P10°L€€°¢1 £90°€1€°01 $68°8Y9°C1 PECTSLO1 9T 9LT 01 $81°686°01 £09°999°01 SyP 11811 TOE 168 11 TES'TO9°TT
188°¢81 120°685

$89°1 026°0L 8¢8 vy 0EL0TT 81779 609°89 OLLIS 89076 L59'S1 ¢Iv'e9
909°8S L99'LY S6FESl 6£5°TY 899°LY SLY'9¢ $68°7C 00€°sT SE6°0T 080°1€
£88°0% £16°0L Lot°1TE 9ZL'81¢ LLY'YTE £E1°16T LLELIT LOSILY 78T'8LT S8 VST
y€0°84S L80O9EY L11°0€E 502°92¢ 9L1°18¥ 06T°ThY 665655 TE£°658 £9T'Y8S 0LL‘99¥
88T°90°1 607019 098°2E€’1 098°L01°1 LLY 1801 LTSL66 98T Lyl L00916 $09°698 0Ly S8
69L°T0ET $18°080°C 79L°908°C CISILLT 60€°86L°1 659V86°1 7€8°790°C $L8815°C LESI8I'T 615°850°€
0S6°ThS 19097y 996°TLE 069°152 1LL°$6T 705182 6L5°L9¢ 957°66€ £5€°979 696°€90°1
66LYSL'S  §  0STSSE9  §  690'866'S $  IL6TIL'S § OSISHI'O § 066'988°9 $ 99T'LEG'S § vOILTEY9 § OLYVIOL § 969°818°s  §

9107 S10T ¥10T €107 7102 1102 0107 6002 8007 L00Z

saunyipusdxo (sopun)
IBA0 SONUIAI JO SSOXF
samypuadxa [BI0 ],
aouenssl Jo 150D
sofreyo [BOSY] pue 1Sa10U]
edioutld
1901AIRS 149(]
Kepno jende)
jusurdofoasp Ajunuwwo))
syioMm oHqngd
SOUBUDUIBIA
UO0L3RAI001 puUe S}Ied
Kyoyes a1jqnd
JUSWILIDAOT [RIURD)
soamypuadxy

SONUAADI [BI0],
AouaGe 10SSO00NS WO JUSISINGUISY
1Yo
sao} Jadofans(]
SOIN}IQJI0] PUR SSUL]
Auadoxd pue Asuow Jo sy
$901A19S 10} saBrey)
[BIUSLIDA0SII]
sywod pue sasuodl]
saxe],

SONUIANY

(Sununoooe Jo siseq jeniooe payipous)
sIea X 1B0Sh] Ua], 18]
Spun,{ [BJUSUILIDAOD) JO SOOUB|Rg PUn, Ui se8ueyD

VINYOAITYO ‘VISHLYVY 40 ALD



81l

1P <1 (evdesuon o1 o ] T S8 DOIAIDEG 1GO(] smestposons saouejug pung ut safuey) 1PN
) 910T S10T 10T £10T (At 1102 010T 600C 800T L00T
%00 & o & : o « o & (000°000'V)$
%0°S (000°000°T)$
%001 R -$
¢ 000°000°C$
%0°G1
. 000°000'v$
%0°0C
000°000°9%
%0°5T ¢
000°000°8%
%0°0¢ - it
b 000°000°01%
%0°SE 000°000°C1$
%0°0r - 000000718
%L0 %80 %L0 %C0 %S°S %9°C1 %111 %S$'8 %6°S %00 saunipuadxa eyrdeonou
Jo a8vuaoiad v se 201108 192(J
TP TLL $ OI6SIFT § SLV'ESES § (06L°STl) § (88¥TSLT) $ (TI8Sze) & (196°8¥87) § 00Fbec'l § S89TIVEL § STe9s  § saoug[eq puny uj seSuEYd JON
($75°968°6) KouoBy yuowdopadpay Jo
UONN[OSSIP WOy $50] AIBUIpIORIXY
000°0LY'E 9¢Lv€9°T1 $95M) $22I00S
Suroteuly 19410 [BI0],
000°0LY'E 000°0T6°C1 panss 1gop Wie}-3uo}
(¥97'587) JUROISIP puog
(s65°L1€") {665°667) (€p9°5LE) (s6z°cEn) (110°61¢€) (c1v'sp) (8£9°¢6y) (pseesTe)  (96%bLL)  (S1L°€09) N0 sIRfsuLL],
S6S°LIEY  $§  665°66T $  €¥9'cLE  § -S6TEET $ 110°%61€  $  EIF'syT  §  8€9'cer $§ pSEESTE § S96vRLL § SIL'E09  § Ul sIgjsuel ],
910T S10T y10T £10T 10T 1R {14 0102 600T 800T L00T (sasn) sa0anos SupuLUy YO
(ponunuo))

(Bununosoe Jo sIskq [BNI0OE PoIpour)
SIBD 4 BOSI Us] Ise]
Spun,] [BIUSWILISAOD) JO Saouefeq pun, ul ssfuey)

VINJAOAITYO ‘VISHLUY 40 ALID



611

'900Z JeoA |eosy o} Joud
SJUNOWE Ul PapN|oul JOU 81e SBSUBDI| BjoIYeA Jojow nalj-uj e} Apadold "Z1.0g 01 dn suolesojje xe} Aousby waidojeaspay pue xe} Apadoid Ay yiog sepnjoul

BYO = SaXE], SSIyouRL] © SOXE ] OSUIDI"] SSOUISHE] m soxe ] xogsues], Auadoid m soxe |, Asuednoo(y jusisuel ] m $OXEB], SO1ES 3 saxe], Aodosd m
910¢C S10¢ ¥10C €107 10T 110T 0107 600 800T L00T
0%

000°000°1$

000°000°T$

- 000°000°€$

000°000°v$

000°000°$

000°000°9%

000°000°L$

000°000°8%

000°000°6%

866°LLL'S £6¥°761 719°969°C 695°316 $69°TE £€5°0TS OFE'8E0°E 96L°8LL ] 9107
LEO'I8ED $88°0¢€1 9Z6°L0Y 8L9°6LY Tv9°Te yTi‘ses 979'960°€ LS1°869°1 S10T
690°866°S 820°IL 109°06€ L10°9%Y 6T5°6T 1z1'ery L98°8€6°T 906°8L9°1 y10z
1L6TIL'S 000°66 €48°69¢ r6°CTh SLY'6E PEEOSY 96E°6TLT L10°109°1 €10t
6v1SP1°9 €L9Y6 $69°69¢ SLOEIE €T9°LE S0€9TY L10°669°C 19L°80T°C 10t
0669889 L96°L91 L8IELE (42 % 44" 0¥8°€T 8€7°99¢ 16T°LEV'T STHELYE 1102
LLY'98T'9 8¢ces] 01Z'6v¢ 195°vTE 9%°1¢ LTH'YST 1L8°€11°C 809°680°C 010¢
v01°L28%9 108°€11 9IL'EHE 0LL'TSE 6LS 1€ ¥95°07¢ SP6°091°C 6TL°€09°C 6002
S8S°LY1°L S16°TS1 129°01¢ 16T°6v¢ 0£€°TT 0SL°TVT SE8°679°C £F8°6She 800¢
105099 3 LY1°181 $ 8L1°60¢€ $ 18L°0LE $ 85¢T9 $ 6L8°0L1 $ 98€¥19°7 3 TL6°006'T $ L00T
[0l SoxXB SOXB], SIXE ], ASU90I] SOXE], JoJSueRi], saxe ], AouednooQ Soxe] $9]eS () SOXBL fradolg FEEYY
P10 asiyouer ssauisng Kradoag JUDISUBL], [eos1,]

(BUnunoook JO SISEQ [BNIOOR PALJIPOU)
SIBO A [BOSI] Ua] 18e7]
90In0G AQ SONUIAYY KB, [BIUSWIULIDAOD) [BISUDD

VINJOAITYD ‘VISALYV 40 ALID



CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA
Assessed Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total

Fiscal Assessed Value ! Effective

Year Secured Nonunitary Unsecured Total Rate (2)

2007 $ 1,116,901,891 3 - $ 26,908,067 1,143,809,958 1.6362%
2008 1,208,552,137 - 27,790,420 1,236,342,557 1.7258%
2009 1,320,054,029 - 33,828,552 1,353,882,581 1.9580%
2010 1,294,067,856 - 36,508,090 1,330,575,946 2.0278%
2011 1,244,580,805 - 35,273,379 1,279,854,184 1.9399%
2012 1,256,361,912 - 37,947,482 1,294,309,394 1.9304%
2013 1,280,561,503 - 37,136,241 1,317,697,744 1.9066%
2014 1,321,986,275 - 37,252,902 1,359,239,177 0.6563%
2015 1,371,438,382 - 36,461,776 1,407,900,158 0.6566%
2016 1,444,454,184 - 35,572,647 1,480,026,831 0.6571%

$1,500,000,000
$1,400,000,000
$1,300,000,000
$1,200,000,000
$1,100,000,000
$1,000,000,000
$900,000,000
$800,000,000
$700,000,000
$600,000,000
$500,000,000
$400,000,000
$300,000,000
$200,000,000
$100,000,000

$0

) Net of exemptions

® Secured assessed value

2007 2008

2009 2010 2011

% Nonunitary assessed value

2012 2013

& Unsecured assessed value

2014 2015

2016

@ Because of California's complicated taxing structure where different values are taxed at different rates due to Proposition 13
and Redevelopment dissolution statutes, we have used an effective rate. The rate has been calculated by dividing total revenue
for the government preparing the statistical section by the total revenue base.
Source: Los Angeles County/Hdl Companies
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CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA

Assessed Value of Taxable Property by Use
Last Ten Fiscal Years

$1,400,000,000
$1,300,000,000
$1,200,000,000
$1,100,000,000
$1,000,000,000
$900,000,000
$800,000,000
$700,000,000
$600,000,000
$500,000,000
$400,000,000
$300,000,000
$200,000,000
$100,000,000
$0

2007

2008

(M Net of exemptions

2009

2010 2011

& Residential w Commercial

2012

2013

# Industrial

2014

u Other

2015

Total

Fiscal Assessed Value Y Effective

Year Residential Commercial Industrial Other Total Rate (2)

2007 $ 752,083,043 245,427,264 3§ 41,607,757 104,691,894 § 1,143,809,958 1.6362%
2008 834,867,651 267,241,541 40,648,765 93,584,600 1,236,342,557 1.7258%
2009 903,680,355 318,428,291 41,755,557 90,018,378 1,353,882,581 1.9580%
2010 866,800,963 327,916,543 42,651,449 93,206,991 1,330,575,946 2.0278%
2011 838,084,514 311,273,554 42,991,503 87,504,613 1,279,854,184 1.9399%
2012 852,696,347 307,159,183 43,530,228 90,923,636 1,294,309,394 1.9304%
2013 871,147,363 308,021,383 47,592,443 90,936,555 1,317,697,744 1.9066%
2014 901,286,264 311,754,506 52,408,817 93,789,590 1,359,239,177 0.6563%
2015 948,906,951 319,382,443 52,441,154 87,169,610 1,407,900,158 0.6566%
2016 1,010,866,752 330,276,264 52,095,299 128,709,256 1,521,947,571 0.6571%

$1,500,000,000

2016

(2) Because of California's complicated taxing structure where different values are taxed at different rates due to Proposition 13 and Redevelopment dissolution statutes, we have used an

effective rate. The rate has been caleulated by dividing total revenue for the government preparing the statistical section by the total revenue base,

Source: Los Angeles County/Hdl Companies
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CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA
Property Tax Rates M

Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

County Community Total

Fiscal Basic Detention Flood School College Water Effective
Year Levy @ Facilities Control Total District ®  District District Rate
2007 100% 0.066% 0.005% 0.071% 2.427% 2.392% 0.470% 1.6362%
2008 100% 0% 0% 0% 2.434% 1.071% 0.450% 1.7258%
2009 100% 0% 0% 0% 2.388% 0.994% 0.430% 1.9580%
2010 100% 0% 0% 0% 2.695% 1.854% 0.430% 2.0278%
2011 100% 0% 0% 0% 2.920% 2.677% 0.370% 1.9399%
2012 100% 0% 0% 0% 2.858% 1.782% 0.370% 1.9304%
2013 100% 0% 0% 0% 2.453% 2.594% 0.350% 1.9066%
2014 100% 0% 0% 0% 2.894% 2.502% 0.350% 0.6563%
2015 100% 0% 0% 0% 2.916% 4.809% 0.350% 0.6566%
2016 100% 0% 0% 0% 3.240% 4.829% 0.350% 0.6571%

1.1000

1.0000

0.9000
0.8000
0.7000
0.6000
0.5000
0.4000
0.3000
0.2000

0.1000

0.0000 - ~
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

= Basic Levy = County = School District # Community College w Water District

M per $100 of assessed value

@ Basic levy for City ($0.067), County ($0.329), LA Consolidated Fire District ($0.183), ABC Unified
District ($0.19), Educational Rev Aug. Fund($0.203) and other agencies ($0.028).

®) ABC Unified School District

@ Cerritos Community College District

(5) Because of California’s complicated taxing structure where different values are taxed at different rates due to Proposition 13 and Redevelopment dissolution statutes, we

have used an effective rate. The rate has been calculated by dividing total revenue for the government preparing the statistical scction by the total revenue base.

Source: Los Angeles County/Hdl Companies . 122



CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA
Principal Property Owners

June 30, 2016
2016 2007
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable
Primary Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Use Value Rank Value ") Value Rank Value !

Eaves Artesia LP Residential $ 31,127,274 1 2.10% $ - - -

Artesia Partners LLC Commercial 29,266,757 2 1.98% - - -
YSM Investment No 3 LLC Commercial 21,850,000 3 1.48% 30,000,000 1 26.23%
California Milk Producers Industrial 15,674,954 4 1.06% 12,749,461 4 11.15%

Realty Specialties Inc Commercial 14,510,605 5 0.98% - -

BSREP Socal 91 Freeway LLC Commercial 14,483,716 6 0.98% - - -
11900 East Artesia Boulevard LLC Institutional 13,627,321 7 0.92% 18,151,000 2 15.87%
Haw Lay I LLC Commercial 12,245,633 8 0.83% 10,766,847 6 9.41%

Egari Family Trust Commercial 10,758,122 9 0.73% - - -

Eastland Estate LLC Commercial 10,020,690 10 0.68% - - -
Rukmani Koka Residential - - - 13,221,581 3 11.56%
BRCP Realty So California Portfol Commercial - - - 12,342,000 5 10.79%
Khanna Enterprises Limited Commercial - - - 8,337,500 7 7.29%
Mei H Chu Trust Commercial - 8,115,120 8 7.09%
Manifield Partnership No 2 Industrial - - - 7,769,054 9 6.79%
John P Sullivan Co Trust Et Al Residential - - - 7,331,305 10 6.41%
Total $ 173,565,072 11.73% $§ 128,783,868 112.60%

Principal Property Owners

$110,000,000
$100,000,000
$90,000,000
$80,000,000
$70,000,000
$60,000,000

- $50,000,000
$40,000,000
$30,000,000
$20,000,000
$10,000,000
$0

2016 2007

= Institutional #Commercial & Industrial @ Residential

M Total assessed valuation of taxable property exclusive of exemptions.
Source; Los Angeles County/Hdl Companies
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CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA

Property Tax Levies and Collections

1)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percent of

Percent of
Total Tax

Fiscal Total Tax Current Tax Current Taxes Delinquent Tax Total Tax Collections to
Year Levy @ Collections Collected Collections Collections Total Tax Levy
2007 712,942  § 682,868 958% § 54,685 % 737,553 103.5%
2008 787,946 723,447 91.8% 84,961 808,408 102.6%
2009 818,319 776,231 94.9% 69,465 845,696 103.3%
2010 791,076 518,077 65.5% 58,575 576,652 72.9%
2011 763,000 721,487 94.6% 44,079 765,566 100.3%
2012 793,593 735,511 92.7% 66,810 802,321 101.1%
2013 805,497 765,011 95.0% 23,001 788,012 97.8%
2014 820,801 818,338 99.7% 18,076 836,414 101.9%
2015 822,968 810,542 98.5% 9,866 820,408 99.7%
2016 844,497 732,978 86.8% 6,200 739,178 87.5%

$900,000

$800,000

$700,000

$600,000

$500,000

$400,000

$300,000

$200,000

$100,000

$0

M Includes only City general property taxes of the General Fund

2007

2008 2009

&

2010 2011

zmz Total Tax Collections

2012 2013

emam Current Tax Collections

2014 2015

—-g Total Tax Levy

@ |ncludes secured and unsecured property tax levies exclusive of homeowner exemption

Source: Los Angeles County.
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CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities Percentage of Percentage of
Fiscal Tax Allocation Capital Personal Debt
Year Bonds @ Notes Leases Total Income ") Per Capita )
2007 $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.00% 0.00%
2008 12,920,000 - 12,920,000 2.60% 0.13%
2009 16,275,000 - 16,275,000 2.08% 0.11%
2010 16,115,000 - - 16,115,000 . 2.06% 0.11%
2011 15,845,000 - - 15,845,000 1.97% 0.11%
2012 - - - - 0.00% 0.00%
2013 - - 238,733 238,733 147.62% 6.99%
2014 - - 195,240 195,240 188.19% 8.59%
2015 - - 148,384 148,384 244.67% 1131%
2016 - - 97,908 97,908 369.89% 17.24%

Outstanding Debt by Type-Last Ten Fiscal Years

$16,500,000
$15,000,000
$13,500,000 - —
$12,000,000
$10,500,000
$9,000,000
$7,500,000
$6,000,000
$4,500,000
$3,000,000
$1,500,000

50

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

& Tax Allocation Bonds @ Revenue Bonds & Notes % Capital Leases & Certificates of Participation

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

) See Demographic Statistics on page 129.
® pye to the dissolution of the Artesia Redevelopment Agency, the debt related to tax allocation bonds is no |
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CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percentage of

Taxable

Less Amounts Assessed
Fiscal Tax Allocation  Available in Debt Valuation "
Year Bonds Service Fund Total of Property Per Capita @
2007 $ - b - 3 - 0.00% 0.00%
2008 12,920,000 4,417,847 8,502,153 0.69% 0.00%
2009 16,275,000 2,073,247 14,201,753 1.05% 0.12%
2010 16,115,000 1,488,224 14,626,776 1.10% 0.12%
2011 15,845,000 1,134,221 14,710,779 1.15% 0.12%
2012 - - - 0.00% 0.00%
2013 - - - 0.00% 0.00%
2014 - - - 0.00% 0.00%
2015 - - - 0.00% 0.00%
2016 - - - 0.00% 0.00%
1.20%
1.00%
0.80% -
0.60%
0.40%
0.20%
0.00% - 4 $ $ L

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

w2 Percentage of Taxable Assessed Valuation of Property ey Per Capita

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes fo the financial statements.
) gee Assessed Value of Taxable Property-Last Ten Fiscal Years on page 120 .

@ see Demographic Statistics on page 129.
® Due to the dissolution of the Artesia Redevelopment Agency, Tax Allocation Bonded Debt is no

longer reported on this schedule.
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CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Bonded Debt

As of June 30, 2016
Net General
Activities Bonded Percentage Amount
and Capital Lease Applicable to Applicable to
Jurisdiction Debt Outstanding  City of Artesia"” City of Artesia
Direct-City of Artesia $  97,911.00 100.000% $  97,911.00
Overlapping:
Water District:
Metropolitan Water District 44916,916 0.124% 55,697
College:
Cerritos CCD DS 2004 Series 2009C 4,520,000 3.622% 163,714
Cerritos CCD DS 2004 Series 2012D 82,152,224 3.622% 2,975,554
Cerritos CCD DS 2012 Series 2014A 91,515,000 3.622% 3,314,673
Cerritos CCD DS 2014 Ref Bonds Series 2014A 78,830,000 3.622% 2,855,223
Cerritos CCD DS 2014 Ref Bonds Series 2014B 17,400,000 3.622% 630,228
School District:
ABC Unified 2003 Refund Bond Series A 29,626,700 11.074% 3,280,861
ABC Unified 2010 Refund Bonds 12,730,000 11.074% 1,409,720

Subtotal overlapping debt
Total direct and overlapping debt

Amount Applicable to City of Artesia

Water District
0.49%

School District
41.52%

O Includes governmental activities debt reported in the Ratios of Oustanding Debt by Type on page 138.

0.87%

14,685,670

5 14783581

Direct-City of Artesia

Community College
57.12%

 The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated by using taxable assessed values. Applicable
percentages were estimated by determining the portio of another governmental unit's taxable assessed
value that is whithin the city's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable assessed value.

Source: Los Angeles County/Hdl Companies
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CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA
Legal Debt Margin Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Assessed Valuations

Legal Debt Margin

Total Debt Limitation- Total Debt
Fiscal Assessed Add Assessed 15% of Total Applicable Legal
Year Value Exemptions Value Assessed Value to Limitation Debt Margin
2007 $ 1,143,809,958 § 5,204,422 $1,149,014,380  $§ 172,352,157 § - $ 172,352,157
2008 1,236,342,557 5,228,401 1,241,570,958 186,235,644 - 186,235,644
2009 1,353,882,581 5,442,341 1,359,324,922 203,898,738 - 203,898,738
2010 1,330,575,946 5,442,341 1,336,018,287 200,402,743 - 200,402,743
2011 1,279,854,184 5,561,161 1,285,415,345 192,812,302 - 192,812,302
2012 1,294,309,394 6,742,068 1,301,051,462 195,157,719 - 195,157,719
2013 1,317,697,744 6,649,145 1,324,346,889 198,652,033 - 198,652,033
2014 1,359,239,177 6,276,033 1,365,515,210 204,827,282 - 204,827,282
2015 1,407,900,158 35,374,179 1,443,274,337 216,491,151 - 216,491,151
2016 1,480,098,981 35,844,707 1,515,943,688 227,391,553 - 227,391,553
225,000,000
200,000,000
175,000,000
150,000,000

125,000,000

100,000,000

75,000,000

50,000,000

25,000,000

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011
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CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

20,000
Year Population ¥ : y —
2007 17,432 15,000
2008 17,424
2009 17,428 I
2010 17,488 0,000
2011 17,608
2012 16,594 5,000
2013 16,681
2014 16’776 0 - - - - .. - .
;g;z ig;g; 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
22007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Personal Per Capita $380,000 T $25,000
370,000 -
Income® Personal s j 000
Year  ($ Thousand)  ncome® $360,000 - 520,
2007 324,982 18,643 $350,000
2008 336,216 19,296 ’g $340,000 - $15,000
2009 338,925 19,447 E: $330,000
2010 331,816 18974 2 330000 $10,000
2011 312,577 17,752 $310.000
2012 346,516 20,882 ’
2013 352,419 21,127 $300,000 $5,000
2014 367,428 21,902 $290,000
2015 363,057 21,635 $280,000 b . . | - %0
2016 362,149 21,450 2007 2008 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Personal Income ~ —&-— Per Capita Personal Income
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Unemployment 10.0%
93]
Year Rate 9.0% .
2007 3.4% .
2008 3.6% 8.0%
2009 5.3% 7.0%
2010 8.4%
2011 9.2% 6.0%
2012 8.9% ,
2013 6.7% 5.0%
2014 5.5% 4.0%
2015 5.1% o
2016 4.1% 3.0%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

%) State Department of Finance.
“ HdL, Coren & Cone.
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CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA

Principal Employers

)

As of June 30, 2016

2016 2014
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Employer Employees Rank Employment  Employees Rank Employment
Artesia Christian Homes, Inc 139 1 2.46% 126 1 5.95%
Tawa Supermarket, Inc 93 2 1.65% 93 3 4.39%
California Dairies, Inc 90 3 1.60% 90 4 4.25%
Stater Bros. Market 81 4 1.44% 95 2 4.49%
Prime Grill Corporation 62 5 1.10%

Automobile Club of So. California 52 6 0.92% 41 9 1.94%
Dejon Enterprises 52 7 0.92% 65 5 3.07%
Don Jose Restaurant 50 8 0.89% 50 6 2.36%
Aspen Healthcare Corp. 48 9 0.85% 48 7 2.27%
Hygieia Home Health Corp. 43 10 0.76% 43 8 2.03%
Denny's Restaurant 40 10 1.89%
710 12.59% 691 32.63%

Total number of employees 5,641 2,118

Number of businesses 1,054 1,041

(1) No principal employer information available prior to 2014.

Source: City Business License Department

www.prospector.com/communities/ca/city/artesia
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CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA
Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function W

Last Three Fiscal Years

2014 2015 2016

Total Total Total
General government 18.00 17.00 19.00
Maintenance 8.00 8.00 7.00
Public safety 3.00 3.00 2.85
Parks and recreation 8.00 8.00 8.00
Total full-time equivalent positions 37.00 36.00 36.85

) No full-time equivalent positions information available prior to 2014.
Fiscal Year 2016

Source: Finance Department

Maintenance, 7.00

General
government, 19.00
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CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA

Operating Indicators by Function

n

Last Three Fiscal Years

2014
General Government
City Council
Regular Election 1
New or Amended Ordinances 16
Business Licenses issued 1,041
Passports
Accepted 723
Photos 240
Finance
Payroll Checks Issued 1,109
Accounts Payable Checks Issued 2,037
Purchase Orders Issued 138
Community Development
Building Permits Issued 589
Planning Reviews 48
Park and Recreation
Facility Use Permits 27
Field Use Permits 112
Number of Youth Programs 152
Number of Adult Programs 100
Number of Senior Programs 45
Number of Family Excursions 4
Number of Senior Excursions 16
Number of Teen Excursions 4
Special Events 18
Hours of Service to Public 3,529
Public Works
Tons collected
Illegal Dumping Pick-Up 68
Number of Graffiti Removal Locations 413
Vines Trimmed (in lineal feet) 7,540
Public Safety-Code Enforcement
Number of Parking Violations 6,450
Number of Parking Stations Maintained 28
Number of Code Enforcement Cases 156
Number of Notices of Violation 120

) Information provided by various departments
*“ Information prior to this year is not available
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CITY OF ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA
Capital Asset Statistics by Function "
Last Three Fiscal Years

2014 2015 2016
General government
Number of Buildings - City Hall 1 1 ]
Number of Historical Museums 2 2 2
Historical Water Tower 1 1 1
General Government Vehicles 2 2 2
Park and Recreation
Number of Buildings - Community Centers 5 5 5
Number of Buildings - Library 1 1 1
Acres of Park Space 16.98 16.98 16.98
Park Trees 202 202 202
Parks 3 3 3
Recreation Transit Vehicles 2 2 2
Playground Areas 5 5 5
Baseball Fields 7 7 7
Basketball Courts 3 3 3
Roller Hockey Rinks 1 1 1
Handball Court 1 1 1
Tennis Courts 1 i i
Maintenance/Public works
Number of Buildings 1 1 1
Street Trees 1,662 1,652 1,652
Miles of Streets and Service Roads 30.09 30.09 30.09
Number of Traffic Signals 23 25 25
Number of Street Lights 85 136 136
Vehicles 11 11 11
Public safety
Number of Parking Pay Stations 29 28 28
Public Safety Vehicles 4 4 4

) Information provided by various departments
@ Information prior to this year is not available
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